 EXHIBIT F



TRIBAL-STATE COMPACT
BETWEEN

THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PINOLEVILLE POMO NATION




TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE

Sec. 1.0.  Purpose and Objectives.

Sec. 2.0.  Definitions.

Sec.3.0.  Scope of Class III Gaming Authérized.

Sec. 3.1. Authorized and Perrnitjcec_i;}Clxailsg.HI Gaming.

Sec.4.0.  Authorized Location {)f GarﬁfngFamhtv Number of Gaming
Devices, and Revenue Contribution.

Sec.4.1.  Authorized Number of Gaming Devices.

Sec. 4.2.  Authorized Gaming Facility.

Sec. 4.3.1. Revenue Contribution.

Sec. 4.4. Exciusivity.

Sec. 5.0.  Revenue Sharing With Non—Ggming Tribes.

Sec. 5.1.  Definitions.

Sec.5.2.  Revenue Sharing Trust Fund: . .

Sec. 6.0.  Licensing. | ii!‘ |

Sec. 6.1.  Gaming Ordinance and Regulations.

Sec. 6.2.  Tribal Ownérship, Management, and Control of Gaming
Operation. '

~ Sec. 6.3.  Prohibitions Regarding Minors.
Sec. 6.4.  Licensing Requirements and Procedures.

13
15
15

16

16

- 16

17

17

17



PR

Summary of Licensing Principles.

Sec. 6.4.1.

Sec. 6.4.2. Gaming Facility.

Sec. 6.4.3. Gaming Employees.

Sec. 6.4.4. Gaming Resource Suppliers.

Sec. 6.4.5. Financial Sources. |

Sec. 6.4.6. Processing Tribal Gaming License Applications.
Sec. 6.4.7. Suitability Standing Regarding Gaming Licenses.
Sec. 6.4.8. Background Inv,estiggtionfsép-f Applicants.

Sec. 6.4.9. Temporary Licerisfin;g‘i ofGamgng Einployees.
Sec. 6.5.0. Tribal Gaming Licenée Issuance.

Sec. 6.5.1. Denial; Suspension, or Revocation of Licenses.
Sec. 6.5.2. Renewal of Licenses; Extensions.; Further Investigation..
Sec. 6.5.3. Identification Cards.

Sec. 6.5.4. Fees for Tribal License.

Sec. 6.5.5. Suspension of Tribal Gaming License.

Sec. 6.5.6. State Determination of Sgitgbility Process.
‘Sec. 6.6. Submission of NewApphiatlon '

Sec. 7.0.  Approval and Testii;;z" lofi Gamllng Devices.

Sec. 7.1.  Gaming Device Approval.

Sec. 7.2.  Gaming Test Laboratory Selection.

ii

17
18
22
24
26
30
31
32

33

34

34
35
36
36
36
37
40
40
40

42



Sec. 7.3.  Independent Audits.

Sec.7.4.  State Gaming Agencyllngpec;ions.

Sec. 7.5.  Technical Standar"ds; K ¢ 'i

Sec. 7.6.  Transportation of Gaiming‘ bé;fices.

Sec. 8.0.  Inspections.

Sec. 8.1.  Investigation and Sanctions.

Sec.8.2.  Assistance by State Gaming Agency.

Sec. 8.3.  Access to Premises by State Gaming Agency, Notification;
Inspections.

Sec. 8.4.  Inspection, Copying and Confidentiality of Documents.

Sec. 8.5. NIGC Audit Reports.

Sec. 8.6.  Cooperation wﬁthbalGamé Agency.

Sec. 8.7. Compact Compliancn Re%/iéw.

Sec.9.0.  Rules and Regnlations for the Operation' and Management
of the Gaming Operation and Facility.

Sec. 9.1.  Adoption of Regnlatlons for Operatlon and Management;
Minimum Standards.

Sec. 9.1.1. Minimum Internal Control Standards (MICS).

Sec.9.2.  Program to Mitigate Problem Gambling.

Sec. 9.3.  Enforcement of Regulations.

Sec. 9.4. - State Civil and Cr1m1nnl Ju ‘d1ct1on __

Sec. 9.5.  Tribal Gaming Agency Members |

iii

42

43

43

44

45

45

45

45

46

49

49

49

50

50

53

55

56

56

57



Sec.9.6.  State Gaming Agency Regulations.

Sec.9.7.  Limitations on Adoption of State Gaming Regulations.
Sec.9.8.  State Gaming Agenéy Regulations.

Sec. 10.0.‘ Patron Disputes.

Sec. 11.0. _Off-Reservation ]?nVifon‘rfr'len't;_el‘lﬂ and Economié Impacts.
Sec. 11.8.1. Tribal Environmenteﬁirﬁioact Report

Sec. 11.8.2. Notice of Preparation of Draft TEIR.

Sec. 11.8.3. Notice of Completion of the Draft TEIR.
‘Sec. 11.8.4. Tssuance of Final TEIR.

Sec. 11.8.5.

Sec. 11.8.6.

Sec. 11.8.7. Intergovernmental Agreement.

Sec. 11.8.8. Arbitration. "

Sec. 12.0. Public and Workﬁia%él.l—‘lé‘ th: ;few, and Liability.
Sec. 12.1.  General Requirements.

Sec. 12.2. Tobacco Smoke.

Sec. 12.3.‘ Health and Safety Standards.

Sec. 12.4.  Tribal Gaming Facility Standé£dé Ordinance.

Sec. 12.5. Insurance Coverage and Claims.

iv

60
61
64
64
66
66
68
69
70
70
71
71
72
74
74
74
74
82

82



Participation in State Statutory Programs Related to

Sec. 12.6.
Employment.

Sec. 12.7. Emergency Services Accessibi.lity.

Sec. 12.8.  Alcoholic Beverage Service.

Sec. 12.9. Possession of Firearms.

Sec. 12.10. Labor Relations.

Sec. 13.0. Dispute Resolution Provisions.

Sec. 13.1.  Voluntary Resolutiqn.

Sec. 13.2.  Arbitration Rules.: ”;__ |

Sec. 13.3. _N§ Waiver or Prechision of ‘Ot.h.er Means of Dispute
Resolution.

Sec. 13.4. Limited Waiver of Sovereign Immunity.

Sec. 14.0. _Effective Date and Term of Compact.

Sec. 14.1.  Effective Date. |

Sec. 14.2. Term of Compact; Termination.

Sec. 15.0. Amendments; Renegotiations.

Sec. 15.1. Amendment by Agrieemer:ll‘gt. .

Sec. 15.2.  Requests to Amend or Renegotlate

Sec. 15.3  Requests to Amend or to Negotiate a New Compact

Sec. 16.0.  Notices.

Sec. 17.0.  Changes to IGRA.

85

87

87

87

87
87
87

89

89
89
90
90
90
91
91
91
91
92

92



Third Party Beneficiaries.,

Complete Agreement.

R A

Ordinances and Regulations.

Off-Reservation Envi_rpnméntal Impact Analysis Checklist

Sec. 18.0. Miscellaneous.
Sec. 18.1.
Sec. 18.2.
Sec. 18.3.  Construction.
Sec. 18.4.  Successor Provisions.
Sec. 18.5.
Sec. 18.6. Calculation of Time.
Sec. 18.7. Representations.‘
EXHIBITS

A.

B.

Tribal Labor Relatidr'is‘ Ordlnance

Appendix A - Minimum Internal Control Standards

vi

92

92

93

93

93

93

93

93

B-1



TRIBAL-STATE COMPACT
BETWEEN THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND THE
PINOLEVILLE POMO NATION

The Pinoleville Pomo Nation ("the Tribe"), a federally recognized Indian tribe
listed in the Federal Register as the Pinoleville Pomo Nation, California (formerly
the Pinoleville Rancheria of Pomo Indians of California), and the State of
California (hereinafter "the State") enter into this tribal-state compact pursuant to
the Indian Gammg Regulatory Act of 1988 (herelnafter "IGRA")

PREAMBLE

WHEREAS, the State and the Tribe executed a tribal-state class III gaming
compact on March 10, 2009, which was ratified by the California Legislature with
the passage of Assembly Bill No. 122, and subsequently submitted to the United
States Department of the Interior for approval (hereinafter the "2009 Compact");
and :

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2011, the United States Department o‘f the Interior
disapproved the 2009 Compact; and

WHEREAS, any potential federal court review of the Department of the Interior's
disapproval of the 2009 Compact could take a significant amount of time, with
uncertain outcome; and

‘WHEREAS, in light of the Tribe's mgnfﬁéant needs and investment of resources in
furtherance of its proposed gaming projéct, the State and the Tribe wish to enters
into a new compact rather than await the outcome of any potential federal court
review of the February 25, 2011, decision of the Department of the Interior; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Tribe have conducted good faith negotiations for the
purpose of agreeing upon terms for a new tribal-state Class III Gaming Compact
(hereinafter the "Compact"); and

WHEREAS, this Compact includes terms that are intended to address concerns
raised by the United States Department of the Interior in disapproving the 2009
Compact, without expressing agreement or disagreement with those concerns, in
accommodation of the unique circumstances of the Tribe; and




WHEREAS, the Special Distribution Fund created by the California Legislature is
at risk of experiencing shortfalls in the foreseeable future, and this Compact
provides revenue to that fund; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Tribe recognize that the exclusive rights that the

~ Tribe will enjoy under this Compact create a unique opportunity for the Tribe to
operate a Gaming Facility in an economic environment free of competition from
the operation of slot machines on non-Indian lands in California and that this
unique economic environment is of great value to the Tribe; and

WHEREAS, in consideration of the exclusive rights enjoyed by the Tribe to
engage in certain Gaming Activities and to operate the number of Gaming Devices
specified herein, and the other meaningful concessions offered by the State in good
faith negotiations, the Tribe has agreed, inter alia, to provide to the State, on a
sovereign-to-sovereign basis, a'fair revet e'Contrlbutlon from the Gaming Devices
operated pursuant to this Compact and .

WHEREAS, the Tribe and the State share an interest in mitigating the off-
reservation impacts of the Tribe's Gaming Facility, affording meaningful consumer
and employee protections in connection with the operations of the Gaming
Facility, fairly regulating the Gaming Activities conducted at the Gaming Fa0111ty,
and fostermg a good-neighbor relatlonshlp, and

WHEREAS, the Tribe has expended considerable resources and incurred
significant financial obligations in connection with the project it is pursuing under
this Compact and the 2009 Compact; and

WHEREAS, the Tribe and the State share a joint sovereign interest in ensuring that
tribal Gaming Activities are free from criminal- and other undesirable elements; and

¥

WHEREAS, this Compact will afford th, Tribeé primary respon31b111ty over the
regulation of its Gaming Facﬂlty and Wlli enhance tribal economic development
and self-sufficiency; and . :

WHEREAS, the State and the Tribe have therefore concluded that this Compact
protects the interests of the Tribe and its members, the surrounding community,
and the California public, and will promote and secure long-term stability, mutual
respect, and mutual benefits;



WHEREAS, the State and the Tribe agree that all terms of this Compact are
intended to be binding and enforceable; and

WHEREAS, upon approval by the Unl,t & /'

Compact shall supersede the 2009 Compact

NOW, THEREFORE, the Tribe and the State agree as set forth herein:

SECTION 1.0. PURPOSES AND OBJECTIVES.

The terms of this Compact are designed to:

(2)

(b)

(d)

development, and genera

Foster a mutually respectful government-to-government relationship
that will serve the mutual interests of the parties.

Develop and implement a means of regulating the Class III Gaming to
ensure its fair and honest operation in a way that protects the interests
of the Tribe, the State, its citizens, and local communities in
accordance with IGRA, and through that regulated Class III Gaming,
enable the Tribe to develop s Ifrsufficiency, promote tribal economic
bs"'and revenues to support the Tribe's
government and its governmental services and programs.

Promote ethical practices in conjunction with that Class III Gaming,
through the licensing and control of persons and entities employed in, .
or providing goods and services to, the Tribe's Gaming Operation,
protect against the presence or participation of persons whose criminal
backgrounds, reputations, character, or associations make them |
unsuitable for participation in gaming, thereby maintaining a high
level of integrity in tribal government gaming, and protect the patrons
and employees of the Gaming Operation and the local communities.

Achieve the objectives set forth in the preamble.

SECTION 2.0. DEFINITIONS.

Sec. 2.1. "Applicable Codes" i

He California Building Code and the

California Public Safety Code apphcébler o the County of Mendocino, as set forth
in Titles 19 and 24 of the Cahfornla Code of Regulations, as those regulations



may be amended during the term of this Compact, including, but not limited to,
codes for building, electrical, energy, mechanical, plumbing, fire and safety.

Sec. 2.2. "Applicant" means an individual or entity that applies for a tribal
gaming license or for a State Gaming Agency determination of suitability.

Sec. 2.3. "Class III Gaming" means the forms of class III gaming defined in
25 U.S.C. § 2703(8) and by the regulauo of the National Indian Gaming
Commission. . |

Sec. 2.4. "Compact" means this compact.

Sec. 2.5. "County" means the County of Mendo.cino, California, a political
subdivision of the State. ‘

Sec. 2.6. "Financial Source" means any person or entity who, directly or
indirectly, extends financing to the Gaming Facility or Gaming Operation.

Sec. 2.7. "Gaming Activity" or "Gaming Activities" means the Class III
Gaming actlvmes authorlzed under this Compact in section 3.1,

Sec. 2.8. "Gaming Device" means any slot machine within the meaning of
article IV, section 19, subdivision (f) of the California Constitution. For purposes
of calculating the number of Gammg Devices, each player station or terminal on
which a game is played constitutes a sé ate Gédming Device, irrespective of
whether it is part of an interconnected system to such terminals or stations.
"Gaming Device" includes, but is not limited to, video poker, but does not include
electronic, computer, or other technological aids that qualify as class II gaming (as
defined under IGRA).

Sec. 2.9. "Gaming Employee" means any natural person who (a) conducts,
operates, maintains, repairs, accounts for, or assists in any Class III Gaming
Activities, or is in any way responsible for supervising such Gaming Activities or
persons who conduct, operate, maintain, repair, account for, assist, or supervise
any such Gaming Activities, (b) is in a category under federal or tribal gaming law
requiring licensing, (c) is an employee of the Tribal Gaming Agency with access to -
confidential information, or (d) is a person whose employment duties require or
authorize access to areas of the Gaming Facility that are not open to the public.




Sec. 2.10. "Gaming Facility" or "Facility" means any building in which
Gaming Activities or any Gaming Operations occur, or in which the business
records, receipts, or other funds of the Gaming Operation are maintained
(excluding offsite facilities dedicated to storage of those records and financial
institutions), and all rooms, buildings, and areas, including hotels, parking lots, and
walkways, a principal purpose of which is to serve the activities of the Gaming
Operation.

Sec. 2.11. "Gaming Operation" means the business enterprise that offers
and operates Gaming Activities, whether exclusively or otherwise.

Sec. 2.12. "Gaming Ordinance" means a tribal ordinance or resolution duly
authorizing the conduct of Gaming Act1v1t1es_:‘ on the Trlbe s Indian lands in
California and approved under IGRA :

Sec. 2. 13 "Gaming Resources means any goods or services provided or
used in connection with Gaming Activities, whether exclusively or otherwise,
including, but not limited to, equipment, furniture, Gaming Devices and ancillary
equipment, implements of Gaming Activities such as playing cards, furniture
designed primarily for Gaming Activities, maintenance or security equipment and
services, and Class III Gaming consulting services. "Gamlng Resources" does not
include professmnal accountlng or legal services. '

Sec. 2.14. "Gaming Resource Supplier" means any person or entity who,
directly or indirectly, does, or is deemed likely to, manufacture, distribute, supply,
vend, lease, purvey, or otherwise provide, to the Tribe's Gaming Operation or |
Facility at least twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) in Gaming Resources in
any twelve (12)-month period, or who, directly or indirectly, receives, or is deemed
likely to receive, in connection with the Tribe's Gaming Operation or Facility, at
least twenty-five thousand dollars (825 OOO))‘ﬁm any consecutive twelve (12)-month
period, provided that the Tribal Gaming'2 gency may exclude a purveyor of
equipment or furniture that is not spe01ﬁcally designed for, and is-distributed
generally for use other than in connection with, Gaming Activities, if, but for the
purveyance, the purveyor is not otherwise a Gaming Resource Supplier, the
compensation received by the purveyor is not grossly disproportionate to the value
of the goods or services provided, and the purveyor is not otherwise a person who
exercises a significant influence over the Gaming Operation.




Sec. 2.15. "IGRA" means the Indlan Gaming Regulatory Act of 1988 (P.L.
100-497, 18 U.S.C. § 1166 et seq. ‘and’ 25 U S.C. § 2701 et'seq.), and any
amendments thereto, as 1nterpreted by’ all fegulauons promulgated thereunder.

Sec. 2.16. "Interested Persons" means (i) all local, state, and federal
agencies, which, if a Project were not taking place on Indian lands, would have
responsibility for approving the Project or would exercise authority over the
natural resources that may be affected by the Project, (ii) any city with a nexus to
the Project, and (iii) persons, groups, or agencies that request in writing a notice of
preparation of a draft Tribal Environmental Impact Report ("TEIR") or have
commented on the Project in writing to the Tribe or the County.

Sec. 2.17. "Management Contractor" means any Gaming Resource Supplier
with whom the Tribe has contracted for the management of any Gaming Act1v1ty
or Gaming Facility, including, but not limited to, any person who would be
regarded as a management contractor under IGRA.

Sec. 2.18. “Net Win” is drop, ph;gj_;lg‘e redemption value of expired tickets,
less fills, less payouts, less that port10 1¢ Gaming Operation’s payments to a
third- party wide-area progressive Jackpot ;system provider that is contributed only
to the progressive jackpot amount.

Sec. 2.19. "NIGC" means the National Indian Gaming Commission.

Sec. 2.20. "Project" means any activity occurring on Indian lands, a
principal purpose of which is to serve the Tribe's Gaming Activities or Gaming
Operation, and which may cause either a direct physical change in the off-
reservation environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in
the off-reservation environment. This definition shall be understood to include, but.
not be limited to, the addition of Gaming Devices within an existing Gaming |
Facility, the impacts of which have not previously been addressed in a Tribal
Environmental Impact Report, construction or planned expansion of any Gaming
Facility and any other construction or planned expansion, a principal purpose of
which is to serve a Gaming Facﬂlty, including, but not limited to, access roads,
parking lots, a hotel, utility, or waste dllspé al systems, or water supply, as long as
such construction or expansion causeé sctor indirect physical change in the
off-reservation environment. For- purposes’of this definition, section 11.0, and
Exhibit A, "reservation" refers to the Tribe's Indian lands within the meaning of
IGRA or lands otherwise held in trust for the Tribe by the United States.




Sec. 2.21. "Significant Effect(s) on the Off-Reservation Environment" is the
same as "Significant Effect(s) on the Environment" and occur(s) if any of the -
following conditions exist:

(a) A proposed Project has the potential to degrade the quality of the off-
reservation environment, curtail the range of the environment, or
achieve short-term, to the‘\dis =dvantage of long-term, environmental
goals. P ~

(b)  The possible effects of a Project on the off-reservation environment
are individually limited but cumulatively considerable. As used
herein, "cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects
of an individual Project are considerable when viewed in connection
with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects,
and the effects of probable future projects.

(c)  The off-reservation environmental effects of a Project will cause
substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or
indirectly.

For purposes of this definition, "reservation" refers to the Tribe's Indian lands
within the meaning of IGRA or lands otherW1se held in trust for the Tribe by the
United States.

Sec. 2.22. "State" means the Sta H,Cahfornla or an authorized ofﬁcml or
agency thereof designated by this'Compact or by the Governor.

Sec. 2.23. "State Gaming Agency" means the entities authorized to
investigate, approve, regulate and license gaming pursuant to the Gambling
Control Act (Chapter 5 (commencing with section 19800) of Division 8 of the
Business and Professions Code), or any successor statutory scheme, and any entity
or entities in which that authority may hereafter be vested.

Sec. 2.24. "State Designated Agency" means the entity or entities
designated or to be designated by the Governor to exercise rights and fulfill
responsibilities established by this Compact.

Sec. 2.25. "Tribe" means the Pinoleville Pomo Nation, a federally
recognized Indian tribe listed in the Federal Register as the Pinoleville Pomo

FY p




Nation, California (formerly the Pinoleville Rancheria of Pomo Indians of
California), or an authorized official or agency thereof.

Sec. 2.26. "Tribal Chairperson" means the person duly elected under the
Tribe's Constitution to perform the duties spec1ﬁed therein, 1nc1ud1ng serving as
the Tribe's official representative.

Sec. 2.27. "Tribal Gaming Agency" means the person, agency, board,
committee, commission, or council designated under tribal law, including, but not
limited to, an intertribal gaming regulatory agency approved to fulfill those
functions by the NIGC, primarily responsible for carrying out the Tribe's
regulatory respon31b1htles under IGRA and the Tribal Gaming Ordinance. No
person employed in, or in connection w1 ‘:'-fthe management, supervision, or
conduct of any Gaming Activity may be »‘fnember or employee of the Tribal
Gaming Agency.

SECTION 3.0. SCOPE OF CLASS III GAMING AUTHORIZED.

Sec. 3.1. Authorized and Permitted Class III Gaming.

(a) The Tribe is hereby authorized to operate only the following Gaming
Activities under the terms and conditions set forth in this Compact:

(1) Gaming Devices.

(2) Any banking or percentage card games.

(3) Any devices or games that are authorized under state law to the
California State Lottery,lprowded that the Tribe will not offer

such games through 15| e "oT the Internet unless others in the State
are permitted to do so “iider state and federal law.

(b)  Nothing herein shall be construed to preclude the Tribe from offering
class II gaming or preclude the negotiation of a separate compact
.governing the conduct of off-track wagering at the Tribe's Gaming
Facility.

(c)  Nothing herein shall be construed to authorize the operation of the
game known as roulette, whether or not played with or on a
mechanical, electro-mechanical, electrical, or video device, or cards,

8



(d)

or any combination ‘of such devices or the operation of any game that -

incorporates the phys1ca1 use Of die ordice.

The Tribe shall not engage in Class III Gaming that is not expressly
authorized in this section.

SECTION 4.0. AUTHORIZED LOCATION OF GAMING FACILITY,

NUMBER OF GAMING DEVICES, AND REVENUE CONTRIBUTION.

Sec. 4.1. Authorized Number of Gaming Devices. Subject to section 3.1,
subdivision (b), and section 4.2, the Tribe is entitled to operate up to a total of 900
Gaming Devices pursuant to the conditions set forth in sections 4.2 and 4.3.1.

Sec. 4.2. Authorized Gaming Facility. The Tribe may engage in Class III
Gaming only on eligible Indian lands owned by the Tribe, at a single Gaming
Facility located within the boundaries of the Pinoleville Rancheria as those
boundaries- exist as of the execution- date of this Compact.

Sec. 4.3.1. Revenue Contrlbut .?li ?‘

(@

(b)

The Tribe shall pay quarterly to the State Gaming Agency for deposit
into the Special Distribution Fund created by the Legislature, in
accordance with the following schedule:

Number of Gaming Devicesin ~ Percentage of Average
Quarterly Device Base . Gaming Device Net Win
1-100 - 0%

101-350 7%

351-750 10%
751-900 ' ' 15%

The payment specified here' has ‘been negotiated between the parties
as a fair contribution, based upon the Tribe's market conditions, its
01rcumstances and the rlghts afforded under this Compact.

(1)  The Tribe shall remit to the State Gaming Agency for deposit
into the Special Distribution Fund the payments referenced in



(©)

(d)

subdivision (a) in quarterly payments. The quarterly payments shall
be based on the Net Win generated during that quarter from the
Gaming Devices, which payments shall be due on the thirtieth day
following the end of each calendar quarter (i.e., by April 30 for the
first quarter, July 30 for the second quarter, October 30 for the third
quarter, and January, 30 for.the ifourth quarter).

(2) Ifthe Gamlrigé Act‘w, es -authorlzed by this Compact commence
during a calendar quarter, the first payment shall be due on the
thirtieth day following the end of the first full quarter of the Gaming
Activities and shall cover the period from the commencement of the
Gaming Activities to the end of the first full calendar quarter.

(3)  All quarterly payments shall be accompanied by the
certification specified in subdivision (d).

The quarterly payments due under section 4.3.1 shall be determined
by first determining the total number of all Gaming Devices operated
by the Tribe during a given quarter (“Quarterly Device Base”). The .
“Average Device Net Win” is calculated by dividing the total Net Win
from all Gaming Devices during the quarter by the Quarterly Device
Base. The Quarterly Device Base is equal to the sum total of the |
number of Gaming Devieés '”"‘Q‘peratlon for each day of the calendar
quarter divided by the ny f days'in the calendar quarter that the
Gaming Operation’ operates any Gamlng Devices during the given
calendar quarter.

At the time each quarterly payment is due, regardless of whether any
monies are owed, the Tribe shall submit to the State a certification
(the “Quarterly Net Win Contrlbutlon Report”) that specifies the
following;: '

(1)  calculation of the Quarterly Device Base;
(2) the Net Win calculation reflecting the quarterly Net Win from
the operation of all Gaming Devices (broken down by Gaming

Device);

(3) the Average Device Net Win;




(4) the percentage(s) applied to the Average Dev1ce Net Win
pursuant to subdivision (a); and

(5) the total amount of the quarterly payment paid to the State.

The Quarterly Net Win Contribution Report shall be prepared by the chief
financial officer of the Gaming Operation and shall also be sent to the State
Gaming Agency.

(e) (1) Atany time after the fourth quarter, but in no event later than
' April 30 of the folloWing calendar year, the Tribe shall provide

to the State Gammg A ency and the agency, trust, fund, or
entity to which qua‘ payments are made pursuant to
subdivision (b) an au_ fed annual certification of its Net Win
calculation from the operatlon of Gaming Devices. The audit
shall be conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards, as applied to audits for the gaming industry,
by an independent certified public accountant who is not |
employed by the Tribe, the Tribal Gaming Agency, the
Management Contractor, or the Gaming Operation, is only
otherwise retained by any of these entities to conduct regulatory
audits or independent audits of the Gaming Operation, and has
no financial interest in any of these entities. The auditor used
by the Tribe for this purpose shall be approved by the State
Gaming Agency, or other State Designated Agency, but the
State shall not unreasonably withhold its consent.

(2) Ifthe aud1t shows that the Tribe made an overpayment from its
Net Win to the: State:«durlng the year covered by the audit, the
Tribe's next quarterlf{ {ay‘ment may be reduced by the amount

of the overage: ‘Conversely, if the audit shows that the Tribe
 made an underpayment to the State during the year covered by
the audit, the Tribe's next quarterly payment shall be increased

by the amount owing.

(3)  The State Gaming Agency shall be authorized to confer with
“the auditor at the conclusion of the audit process and to review
all of the independent certified public accountant's work papers
and documentation relating to the audit. The Tribal Gaming
Agency shall be notified of and provided the opportunity to

11
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(g) |

(h) -

&t i’ :,.'.'. s "
participate in and a{t any such conference or document
review. .. 0V, 2o

The State Gaming Agency may audit the Quarterly Device Base and
Net Win calculations specified in subdivision (c). The State Gaming
Agency shall have access to all records deemed necessary by the State.
Gaming Agency to verify the Quarterly Device Base and Net Win
calculations, including access to the Gaming Device accounting
systems and server-based systems and software and to the data
contained therein. If the State Gaming Agency determines that the
Net Win is understated or the deductions overstated, it will promptly
notify the Tribe and provide a copy of the audit. The Tribe within
twenty (20) days will either accept the difference or provide a
reconciliation satisfactory to the State Gaming Agency. If the Tribe
accepts the difference or does not provide a reconciliation satisfactory
to the State Gaming Agency, the Tribe must immediately pay the

“amount of the resulting déficiency, plus accrued interest thereon at the

rate of one percent (1.0%);: nﬁbnth or the maximum rate permitted
by state law for dehanent payments owed to the State, whichever is
less. If the Tribe does not accept the difference but does not provide a
reconciliation satisfactory to the State Gaming Agency, the Tribe,
once payment is made, may commence dispute resolution under
section 13.0. The parties expressly acknowledge that the
certifications provided for in subdivision (d) are subject to section 8.4,
subdivision (h).

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in section 13, any failure of
the Tribe to remit the payments referenced in subdivision (a) pursuant
to subdivisions (b), (¢), (d), (¢) and (f) will entitle the State to
immediately seek injunctive relief in federal or state court, at the
State's election, to compel the payments, plus accrued interest thereon
at the rate of one percent (1.0%) per month, or the maximum rate
permitted by State law for dehnquent payments owed to the State,
whichever is less; and’ furth' - the Tribe expressly consents to be sued
in either court and Walves '1. éht to assert sovereign immunity
against the State in any such proceedlng Failure to make timely
payment shall be deemed a material breach of this Compact.

Use of funds. The State’s share of the Gaming Device revenue shall
be placed in the Special Distribution Fund, available for appropriation

12



by the Legislature for the following purposes:

(1) Grants, including any administrative costs, for programs
designed to address gambling addiction;

P

(2) Grants, 1n01ua1ng‘a aammlstrauve costs and environmental
review costs, ! for the support of state and local government
~agencies 1mpacted by tribal government gaming;

(3) Compensation for regulatory costs incurred by the State
Gaming Agency and the state Department of Justice in
connection with the implementation and administration of the
Compact; |

(4) Payment of shortfalls that may occur in the Revenue Sharing
~ Trust Fund; and '

(5) Any other purposes specified by the Legislature. It is the intent
of the parties that California Indian tribes with class III gaming
compacts with the State obligating them to pay into the Special
Distribution Fund 'w iconsulted in the process of identifying
purposes for grants fiadé to local governments from the Special
Distribution Fund.

2

Sec. 4.4. Exclusivity.

In recognition of the Tribe's agreement to make the payments specified in -
section 4.3.1, the Tribe shall have the following rights:

(2)

In the event the exclusive right of Indian tribes to operate Gaming
Devices in California is abrogated by the enactment, amendment, or
repeal of a state statute or constitutional provision, or the conclusive
and dispositive judicial construction of a statute or the state
Constitution by a California appellate court after the effective date of
this Compact, that Gaming Devices may lawfully be operated by
another person, organization, or entity (other than an Indian tribe




pursuant to a compact) within California, the Tribe shall have the right
to exercise one of the following options:

(1)  Terminate this Compact, in which case the Tribe will lose the
right to operate Gaming Devices and other Class III Gaming
authorized by this Compact; or

(2)  Continue under the Compact with an entitlement to a reduction
of the rate specified in section 4.3.1, subdivision (a), following
conclusion of negotiations, to prov1de for (i) compensation to
the State for the actual and reasonable costs of regulation, as
determined by the- Staté Director of Finance; (ii) reasonable
payments to local goveinments impacted by tribal government
gaming, the amount to be determined based upon any
Intergovernmental Agreement entered into pursuant to section
11.8.7, if such Intergovernmental Agreement is in effect; (iii)
grants for programs designed to address gambling addiction;
and (iv) such assessments as may be permissible at such time
under federal law. Such negotiations shall commence within
fifteen (15) days after receipt of a written request by a party to
enter into the negotiations, unless both parties agree in writing
to an extension of time. If the Tribe and State fail to reach
agreement on the amount of reduction of the rate of payments
within sixty (60) days following commencement of the
negotiations specified in this section, the amount shall be
determined by arbltratlon pursuant to sectlon 13.2 of the
Compact. . i :

(b) Nothing in this sectlon 1s 1 _ ded to preclude the State Lottery from
offering any lottery games or ‘devices that are currently or may
hereafter be authorized by state law.

SECTION 5.0. REVENUE SHARING WITH NON-GAMING TRIBES.

Sec. 5.1. Definitions.

For purposes of this section 5.0, the following definitions apply:

14




(a)

®

"Revenue Sharing Trust Fund" is a fund created by the Legislature
and administered by the California Gambling Control Commission, as
trustee, with no duties or obligations except as set forth in this
Compact, for the receipt, deposit, and distribution of monies paid by
gaming tribes for the benefit of Non-Gaming Tribes and Limited-
Gaming Tribes. The Commission shall have no discretion with
respect to the use or disbursement by recipient tribes of the Revenue
Sharing Trust Fund monies. Its authority shall be to serve as a
depository of the trust funds and to allocate and disburse them on a
quarterly basis to eligible Non-Gaming and Limited-Gaming Tribes as
specified in the tribal-state compacts. In no event shall the State's |
general fund be obligated to make up any shortfall in the Revenue
Sharing Trust Fund or to pay any unpaid claims connected therewith,
and, notwithstanding any provision of law including any existing
provision of law implementing the Commission’s obligations related
to the Revenue Sharing Trist Fund under any class III gaming
compact, Non-Gamirg Tribes and Limited-Gaming Tribes are not
third party beneficiaries of this Compact and shall have no right to
seek any judicial order compelling disbursement of any Revenue
Sharing Trust monies to them.

A "Non-Gaming Tribe" is a California federally recognized tribe, with
or without a tribal-state compact, which has not engaged in, or
offered, class II, or Class III Gaming in any location whether within or
without California, as of the date of distribution to such tribe from the
Revenue Sharing Trust Fund or during the immediately preceding

- three hundred sixty-five (365) days

A "Limited-Gaming Tribe" is a California federally recognized tribe
that has a class III gaming compact with the State but is operating
fewer than a combined total ‘of three hundred fifty (350) Gaming
Devices in all of its gammg o)peratlons wherever located.

Co 3*‘

[
. o

Sec. 5.2. Revenue Sharing Trust Fund.

(a)

The Tribe agrees that it will pay into the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund
on January 30 of the following year for distribution on an equal basis
to Non-Gaming and Limited-Gaming Tribes the following amounts:

15
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TYPE-C

U.S. District Court

District of Columbia (Washington, DC)
CIVIL DOCKET FOR CASE #: 1:11-cv-00160-RWR

CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE et al v.

SALAZAR et al
Assigned to: Judge Richard W. Roberts
Case: 1:05-cv-00739-JR

Cause: 05:702 Administrative Proccdure Act

Plaintiff

CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE

Date Filed: 01/24/2011
Jury Demand: None
Nature of Suit: 890 Other Statutory

- Actions

Jurisdiction: U.S. Government
Defendant

represented by Christopher Michael Loveland

SHEPPARD, MULLIN, RICHTER &

- HAMPTON LLP

1300 I Street, NW

11th Floor East

Washington, DC 20005

(202) 218-0000

Fax: (202) 312-9432

Email: cloveland@sheppardmullin.com
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

JAMES F. RUSK _
SHEPPARD, MULLIN, RICHTER &
HAMPTON, LLP

~ Four Embarcadero Center

San Francisco, CA 94111
415-774-3232

Fax: 415-434-3947

PRO HACVICE

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

M. Roy Goldberg

SHEPPARD MULLIN RICHTER &
HAMPTON LLP

1300 I Street, NW

11th Floor East

Washington, DC 20005-3314

(202) 218-0007

Fax: (202) 312-9425

Email: rgoldberg@sheppardmulhn com
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Robert J. Uram
SHEPPARD, MULLIN, RICHTER &
HAMPTON, LLP

https://ecf.dcd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313875599490286-L_1_0-1 3/6/2013
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Plaintiff
TRIBAL COUNCIL

Plaintiff
YAKIMA DIXIE
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Four Embarcadero Center

San Francisco, CA 94111
(415) 434-9100

Fax: 415-434-3947

PRO HAC VICE

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Saba Bazzazieh

ROSETTE, LLP

565 W. Chandler Blvd,
Suite-212

Chandler, AZ 85225
480-889-8990

Fax: 480-889-8997
TERMINATED: 04/17/2012
PRO HAC VICE

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

represented by Christopher Michael Loveland

(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

JAMES F. RUSK

(See above for address) -

PRO HAC VICE
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

M. Roy Goldberg
(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Robert J. Uram

(See above for address)

PRO HAC VICE

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

represented by Christopher Michael Loveland

(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

JAMES F. RUSK

(See above for address)

PRO HAC VICE

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

M. Roy Goldberg
(See above for address)

"ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

https://ecf.dcd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313875599490286-L_1_0-1 3/6/2013
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Plaintiff
VELMA WHITEBEAR

Plaintiff
ANTONIA LOPEZ

Plaintiff
MICHAEL MENDIBLES
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Robert J. Uram
(See above for address)
PRO HACVICE _
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

represented by Christopher Michael Loveland

(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

JAMES F. RUSK

(See above for address)

PRO HACVICE

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

M. Roy Goldberg
(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Robert J. Uram

(See above for address)

PRO HACVICE

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

represented by Christopher Michael Loveland

(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

JAMES F. RUSK

(See above for address)

PRO HAC VICE

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

M. Roy Goldberg
(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Robert J. Uram

(See above for address)

PRO HACVICE

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

represented by Christopher Michael Loveland

(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

JAMES F. RUSK

https://ecf.dcd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313875599490286-L_1_0-1 3/6/2013
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Plaintiff
EVELYN WILSON

Plaintiff
ANTOINE AZEVEDO
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(See above for address)
PRO HAC VICE
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

M. Roy Goldberg
(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

(See above for address)
PRO HAC VICE
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

RobertJ, Uram

represented by Christopher Michael Loveland

(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

JAMES F. RUSK

- (See above for address)

PRO HACVICE
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

M. Roy Goldberg
(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Robert J. Uram

(See above for address)

PRO HACVICE . _
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

represented by Christopher Michael Loveland

(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

JAMES F. RUSK

(See above for address)

PRO HACVICE _
ATTORNEY.TO BE NOTICED

M. Roy Goldberg
(See above for address)
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Robert J. Uram

(See above for address)

PRO HACVICE

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

https:/ecf.ded.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313875599490286-L_1_0-1 _ v 3/6/2013
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V.
Defendant
KENNETH LEE SALAZAR

in his official capacity as Secretary of -

the United States Department of the
Interior

Defendant

LARRY ECHO HAWK

" in his official capacity as Assistant
Secretary-Indian Affairs of the United
States Department of the Interior

Defendant

MICHAEL BLACK

in his official capacity as Director of
the Bureau of Indian Affairs within the
United States Department of the
Interior

V. _
Intervenor Defendant

CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE ‘

Page 5 of 16

represented by Kenneth Dean Rooney

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
ENRD/Natural Resources Section
601 D Street, NW

Washington, DC 20004

(202) 514-9269

Fax: (202) 305-0506

Email: kenneth.rooney@usdoj.gov
LEAD ATTORNEY

ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

represented by Kenneth Dean Rooney

(See above for address)
LEAD ATTORNEY
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

represented by Kenneth Dean Rooney

(See above for address)
LEAD ATTORNEY
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

represented by Robert A. Rosette

ROSETTE & ASSOCIATES, PC
565 West Chandler Boulevard
Suite 212

Chandler, AZ 85225

(480) 889-8990

Fax: (480) 889-8997

Email: rosette@rosettelaw.com
LEAD ATTORNEY
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

M. Roy Goldberg

(See above for address)
TERMINATED: 04/17/2012
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Saba Bazzazieh
(See above for address)

https://ecf.dcd.uscourts. gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313875599490286-L _1_0-1 3/6/2013
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PRO HACVICE
ATTORNEY TO BE NOTICED

Date Filed

Docket Text

01/24/2011

=

COMPLAINT against MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY ECHO HAWK, KEN
SALAZAR ( Filing fee $ 350, receipt number 4616035910) filed by MICHAEL
MENDIBLES, YAKIMA DIXIE, EVELYN WILSON, TRIBAL COUNCIL,
ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, VELMA
WHITEBEAR, ANTONIA LOPEZ. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A, # 2 Exhibit
B, # 3 Exhibit C, # 4 Civil Cover Sheet)(rdj) (Attachment 1 replaced on
1/25/2011) (dr) (Entered: 01/25/2011)

01/24/2011

SUMMONS (5) Issued as to MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY ECHO HAWK,
KEN SALAZAR, U.S. Attorney and U.S. Attorney General (rdj) (Entered:
01/25/2011)

01/24/2011

o]

NOTICE OF RELATED CASE by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA
VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL
MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN
WILSON. Case related to Case No. 05-739. (rdj) (Entered: 01/25/2011)

02/03/2011

[[SS)

RETURN OF SERVICE/AFFIDAVIT of Summons and Complaint Executed as
to the US Attorney. Date of Service Upon U.S. Attorney 1/27/2011. ( Answer
due for ALL FEDERAL DEFENDANTS by 3/28/2011.), RETURN OF
SERVICE/AFFIDAVIT of Summons and Complaint Executed. MICHAEL
BLACK served on 1/27/2011; LARRY ECHO HAWK served on 1/27/2011;
KEN SALAZAR served on 1/27/2011 (Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 02/03/2011)

02/03/2011 '

4~

| RETURN OF SERVICE/AFFIDAVIT of Summons and Complaint Executed

on Attorney General. Date of Service Upon Attorney General 01/27/2011.
(Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 02/03/2011)

02/03/2011

RETURN OF SERVICE/AFFIDAVIT of Summons and Complaint Executed as
to MICHAEL BLACK served on 1/27/2011; LARRY ECHO HAWK served on
1/27/2011; KEN SALAZAR served on 1/27/2011. (See Docket Entry 3 to view
document) (jf, ) (Entered: 02/04/2011)

03/07/2011

I

NOTICE of Appearance by Kenneth Dean Rooney on behalf of All Defendants
(Rooney, Kenneth) (Main Document 6 replaced to correct case number on
3/8/2011) (if, ). (Entered: 03/07/2011)

03/08/2011

1

Consent MOTION for Leave to Appear Pro Hac Vice Attorney Name- Robert
J. Uram, :Firm- Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP, :Address- 4
Embarcadero Center, 17th Floor, San Francisco, CA 941 11 Phone No. - (415)
434-9100. Fax No. - (415) 434-3947 by ANTOINE AZEVEDO,
CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, ANTONIA
LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA
WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Declaration of
Robert J. Uram, # 2 Text of Proposed Order)(Goldberg, M.) (Entered:
03/08/2011)

https://ecf.ded.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313 875599490286-L 1 0-1 3/6/2013
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03/16/2011

oo

WITHDRAWN BY COUNSEL (SEE DOCKET ENTRY 19)..... MOTION for
Preliminary Injunction by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY
MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL
MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN
WILSON (Attachments: # 1 Affidavit Exhibit 1 to Motion, # 2 Exhibit Exhibit
A to Affidavit of Robert Uram, # 3 Exhibit Exhibit B to Affidavit of Robert’
Uram, # 4 Exhibit Exhibit C to Affidavit of Robert Uram, # 5 Exhibit Exhibit D
to Affidavit of Robert Uram, # 6 Exhibit Exhibit E to Affidavit of Robert Uram,
# 7 Exhibit Exhibit F to Affidavit of Robert Uram, # 8 Exhibit Exhibit G to
Affidavit of Robert Uram, # 9 Exhibit Exhibit H to Affidavit of Robert Uram, #
10 Exhibit Exhibit I to Affidavit of Robert Uram, # 11 Exhibit Exhibit J to
Affidavit of Robert Uram, # 12 Exhibit Exhibit K to Affidavit of Robert Uram,
# 13 Exhibit Exhibit L to Affidavit of Robert Uram, # 14 Exhibit Exhibit M to
Affidavit of Robert Uram, # 15 Exhibit Exhibit N to Affidavit of Robert Uram,
# 16 Exhibit Exhibit O to Affidavit of Robert Uram to, # 17 Affidavit Exhibit 2
to Motion, # 18 Affidavit Exhibit 3 to Motion, # 19 Affidavit Exhibit 4 to
Motion, # 20 Affidavit Exhibit 5 to Motion, # 21 Affidavit Exhibit 6 to Motion,
# 22 Affidavit Exhibit 7 to Motion, # 23 Affidavit Exhibit 8 to Motion, # 24
Affidavit Exhibit 9 to Motion, # 25 Affidavit Exhibit 10 to Motion, # 26 Text of
Proposed Order)(Goldberg, M.) Modified on 4/8/2011 (jf, ). (Entered:
03/16/2011)

03/17/2011

[Ne

First MOTION for Extension of Time to File Answer by MICHAEL BLACK,
LARRY ECHO HAWK, KEN SALAZAR (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed
Order)(Rooney, Kenneth) (Entered: 03/17/2011)

03/17/2011

MINUTE ORDER: It is hereby ORDERED that the defendants file by April 1,
2011 their opposition to plaintiffs' motion for a preliminary injunction.
Plaintiffs shall file by April 8, 2011 their reply. Signed by Judge Richard W.
Roberts on 3/17/11. (lerwrl) (Entered: 03/17/2011)

03/17/2011

MINUTE ORDER: It is hereby ORDERED that the defendants' motion 9 for an
extension of time be, and hereby is, GRANTED. Defendants shall file an
answer or other response to the plaintiffs' complaint by April 27, 2011. Signed
by Judge Richard W. Roberts on 3/17/11. (lerwrl) (Entered: 03/ 17/2011)

03/17/2011

Set/Reset Deadlines: Defendant's Answer to the Complaint due by 4/27/2011.
(hs) (Entered: 03/17/2011)

03/17/2011

Set/Reset Deadlines: Defendant's Response to Motion for Preliminary
Injunction due by 4/1/2011; Plaintiff's Reply due by 4/8/2011. (hs) (Entered:
03/17/2011)

03/17/2011

NOTICE of Appearance by Robert A. Rosette on behalf of CALIFORNIA
VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE (znmw, ) (Entered: 03/22/2011)

03/17/2011

| 6 Exhibit A to Declarations re Motion to Intervene and Dismiss, # 7 Exhibit B

MOTION to Intervene as a Defendant by CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order re Motion to Intervene, #2
Declaration re Motion to Intervene, # 3 Motion to Dismiss, # 4 Text of
Proposed Order re Motion to Dismiss, # 5 Declaration re Motion to Dismiss, #

to Declarations re Motion to Intervene and Dismiss, # 8 Exhibit C to

https://ecf.dcd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?31387 5599490286-L_1_0-1 3/6/2013
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Declarations re Motion to Intervene and Dismiss, # 9 Exhibit D to Declarations
re Motion to Intervene and Dismiss, # 10 Exhibit E to Declarations re Motion to
Intervene and Dismiss, # 11 Exhibit F to Declarations re Motion to Intervene
and Dismiss, # 12 Exhibit G to Declarations re Motion to Intervene and
Dismiss)(znmw, ) (Entered: 03/22/2011)

03/22/2011

NOTICE of Appearance by Christopher Michael Loveland on behalf of All
Plaintiffs (Loveland, Christopher) (Entered: 03/22/2011)

03/22/2011

for Leave to Intervene as Defendant by CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK

MOTION to Expedite Time to Rule on the California Valley Miwok's Motion

TRIBE (Attachments: # 1 Affidavit of Robert A. Rosette)(Rosette, Robert)
(Entered: 03/22/2011)

03/25/2011

Roberts on 3/25/11. (lerwrl) (Entered: 03/25/2011)

MINUTE ORDER: It is hereby ORDERED that the parties file by March 29,
2011 responses to the motion 11 to intervene. Signed by Judge Richard W.

03/25/2011

Set/Reset Deadlines: Parties Responses to Motion to Intervene due by
3/29/2011. (hs) (Entered: 03/25/2011)

03/29/2011

Memorandum in opposition to re 11 MOTION to Intervene filed by ANTOINE

AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, -
ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA
WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 1 -Affidavit of
Robert Uram, # 2 Exhibit A to Robert Uram Affidavit, # 3 Exhibit B to Robert
Uram Affidavit)(Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 03/29/2011)

03/29/2011

| by CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE by MICHAEL BLACK,

ENTERED IN ERROR.... MEMORANDUM re 11 MOTION to Intervene filed

LARRY ECHO HAWK, KEN SALAZAR. (Rooney, Kenneth) Modified on
3/30/2011 (if, ). (Entered: 03/29/2011)

03/29/2011

RESPONSE re 11 MOTION to Intervene filed by MICHAEL BLACK,
LARRY ECHO HAWK, KEN SALAZAR. (jf, ) (Entered: 03/30/2011)

03/30/2011

NOTICE OF CORRECTED DOCKET ENTRY: Document No. re 15

Memorandum was entered in error and will be refiled by the clerk's office under
the correct category.(jf, ) (Entered: 03/30/2011)

03/30/2011

by Judge Richard W. Roberts on 3/30/11. (Ierwr1) (Entered: 03/30/2011)

MINUTE ORDER: It is hereby ORDERED that the California Valley Miwok
Tribe file by April 4, 2011 a reply in support of its motion to intervene. Signed

03/31/2011

Set/Reset Deadlines: Plaintiff's Reply to Motion to Intervene due by 4/4/2011.
(hs) (Entered: 03/31/2011)

03/31/2011

Consent MOTION for Extension of Time to File Response/Reply asto 8
MOTION for Preliminary Injunction by MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY ECHO
HAWK, KEN SALAZAR (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Rooney,
Kenneth) (Entered: 03/31/2011)

03/31/2011

https://ecf.dcd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313875599490286-L_1_0-1

MOTION for Extension of Time to Modifj/ Briefing Schedule by
CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE (Attachments: # 1 Affidavit of

3/6/2013
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Robert A. Rosette, # 2 Text of Proposed Order)(Rosette Robert) (Entered:
03/31/2011)

04/01/2011

MINUTE ORDER: It is hereby ORDERED that the defendants' consent motion
17 for an extension of time be, and hereby is, GRANTED. Defendants'
opposition to plaintiffs' motion for a preliminary injunction is due by April 5,
2011, and plaintiffs' reply is due by April 12, 2011. Signed by Judge Richard
W. Roberts on 4/1/11. (lerwrl) (Entered: 04/01/2011)

04/01/2011

MINUTE ORDER: It is hereby ORDERED that the plaintiffs’ consent motion 7
be, and hereby is, GRANTED, and Robert J. Uram is admitted to appear pro
hac vice. Signed by Judge Richard W. Roberts on 4/1/11. (lcrwrl) (Entered:
04/01/2011)

04/01/2011

NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL OF MOTION by CALIFORNIA VALLEY
MIWOK TRIBE re 8 MOTION for Preliminary Injunction as Moot
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 2011 Decision)(Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 04/01/2011)

04/04/2011

Set/Reset Deadlines: Defendant's Response due by 4/5/2011; Plaintiff's Reply
due by 4/12/2011. (hs) (Entered: 04/04/2011)

04/04/2011

REPLY to opposition to motion re 11 MOTION to Intervene filed by
CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE. (Attachments: # 1 Affidavit of
Robert A. Rosette, # 2 Exhibit A, # 3 Exhibit B, # 4 Exhibit C, # 5 Exhibit D, #
6 Exhibit E, # 7 Exhibit F, # 8 Exhibit G)(Rosette, Robert) (Entered:
04/04/2011)

04/07/2011

MINUTE ORDER: In light of the plaintiffs' notice of withdrawal of their -

motion for a preliminary injunction, it is hereby ORDERED that the California
Valley Miwok Tribe's motion 18 for an extension of time be, and hereby is,
DENIED as moot. Signed by Judge Richard W. Roberts on 4/7/11. (lerwrl)
(Entered: 04/07/2011)

04/22/2011

Second MOTION for Extension of Time to File Answer re 1 Complaint, by
MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY ECHO HAWK, KEN SALAZAR (Attachments:
# 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Rooney, Kenneth) (Main Document 21 replaced
on 4/26/2011) (jf, ). (Entered: 04/22/2011)

04/25/2011

MINUTE ORDER: It is hereby ORDERED that the defendants' unopposed
motion 21 for an extension of time be, and hereby is, GRANTED. Defendants'

answer or other response to the complaint is due by May 27, 2011. Signed by
Judge Richard W. Roberts on 4/25/11. (Icrwrl) (Entered: 04/25/2011)

04/25/2011

NOTICE OF ERROR re 21 Motion for Extension of Time to File Answer;
emailed to kenneth.rooney@usdoj.gov, cc'd 8 associated attorneys -- The PDF
file you docketed contained errors: 1. Incorrect header/caption/case number, 2.
Please refile document, 3. Entered in Error; please refile with correct case
number. (znmw, ) (Entered: 04/25/2011)

04/26/2011

Set/Reset Deadlines: Answer/Response to the Complaint due by 5/27/2011. (hs)
(Entered: 04/26/2011)

05/19/2011

https://ecf.dcd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313875599490286-L_1_0-1

Joint MOTION to Stay Litigation by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, MICHAEL
BLACK, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE,

3/6/2013
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LARRY ECHO HAWK, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, KEN
SALAZAR, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN
WILSON (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 1, # 2 Exhibit 2, # 3 Exhibit 3, # 4 Text of
Proposed Order)(Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 05/19/2011)

05/25/2011

MINUTE ORDER: It is hereby ORDERED that the parties' joint motion 22 to
stay be, and hereby is, GRANTED. The case is stayed and administratively
closed until July 7, 2011, by which date the parties shall file a joint status report
and proposed order. Signed by Judge Richard W. Roberts on 5/25/11. (lerwrl)
(Entered: 05/25/2011)

07/07/2011

STATUS REPORT Regarding the Status of the Reconsidered Decision of the
Assistant Secretary - Indian Affairs and Motion for Extension of the Temporary
Stay of Litigation by MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY ECHO HAWK, KEN
SALAZAR. (Attachments: # 1 Plaintiffs' Proposed Order, # 2 Defendants'
Proposed Order)(Rooney, Kenneth) (Entered: 07/07/2011)

07/11/2011

24 | ORDER; Granting Joint Motion for Temporary Stay of Litigation, Joint Status

Report due by 8/15/2011, Signed by Judge Richard W. Roberts on 7/11/2011.
(hs) (Entered: 07/11/201 1)

08/12/2011

STATUS REPORT Regarding the Status of the Reconsidered Decision of the
Assistant Secretary - Indian Affairs and Unopposed Motion for Extension of the
Temporary Stay of Litigation by MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY ECHO HAWK,
KEN SALAZAR. (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Rooney,
Kenneth) (Entered: 08/12/2011)

08/15/2011

ORDER, Staying case until 09/02/11; Joint Status Report due by 9/2/2011.
Signed by Judge Richard W. Robeﬁs on 8/12/11. (See Order for detail) (gdf)
(Entered: 08/15/2011)

09/01/2011

STATUS REPORT AND PROPOSED ORDER REGARDING THE STATUS
OF THE RECONSIDERED DECISION OF THE ASSISTANT SECRETARY -
INDIAN AFFAIRS by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY
MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL
MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN
WILSON. (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Goldberg, M.) (Entered:
09/01/2011)

09/02/2011

9/6/2011 to correct document number (jf, ). (Entered: 09/02/2011)

NOTICE of Filing Emergency Supplement to Motion to Intervene by
CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE re 11 MOTION to Intervene
(Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A, # 2 Exhibit B)(Rosette, Robert) Modified on

09/06/2011

RESPONSE re 28 Notice (Other) Emergency Supplement filed by ANTOINE
AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE,
ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA
WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit A)(Goldberg,
M.) (Entered: 09/06/2011)

09/09/2011

MINUTE ORDER: In light of the parties' September 1, 2011 joint status report,
it is hereby ORDERED that the parties submit by September 16, 2011 a
proposed order and joint status report proposing a schedule on which the case

https://ecf.dcd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313875599490286-L._1_0-1- . 3/6/2013
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should proceed. Signed by Judge Richard W. Roberts on 9/9/11. (Ierwr1)
(Entered: 09/09/2011)

09/09/2011

Set/Reset Deadlines: Joint Status Report due by 9/16/2011 (hs) (Entered:
09/09/2011)

09/13/2011

STATUS REPORT (Joint) by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, MICHAEL BLACK,
CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, LARRY ECHO
HAWK, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, KEN SALAZAR,
TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON. (Goldberg,
M.) (Entered: 09/13/2011)

09/15/2011

NOTICE of Proposed Order by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, MICHAEL BLACK,
CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, LARRY ECHO
HAWK, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, KEN SALAZAR,
TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON re 30
Status Report (Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 09/15/2011)

09/20/2011

MINUTE ORDER: In light of the parties' September 13, 2011 joint status '
report, it is hereby ORDERED that plaintiffs file amended complaint by
October 17, 2011, that defendants answer or otherwise respond to the first
amended complaint and lodge the administrative record by December 1, 2011,
and that plaintiffs shall have 30 days to review the administrative record and
request supplementation or discovery. Signed by Judge Richard W. Roberts on
9/20/11. (lerwrl) (Entered: 09/20/2011) ‘

10/17/2011

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT against MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY
ECHO HAWK, KEN SALAZAR filed by MICHAEL MENDIBLES,
YAKIMA DIXIE, EVELYN WILSON, TRIBAL COUNCIL, ANTOINE
AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, VELMA
WHITEBEAR, ANTONIA LOPEZ.(znmw, ) (Entered: 10/18/2011)

12/01/2011

ADMINISTRATIVE RECORD Notice of Lodging by MICHAEL BLACK,
LARRY ECHO HAWK, KEN SALAZAR. (Attachments: # 1 Certificate of
Service)(Rooney, Kenneth) (Entered: 12/01/2011)

12/01/2011

ANSWER to 32 Amended Complaint by MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY ECHO -
HAWK, KEN SALAZAR. Related document: 32 Amended Complaint filed by
TRIBAL COUNCIL, ANTONIA LOPEZ, YAKIMA DIXIE, MICHAEL
MENDIBLES, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, EVELYN
WILSON, VELMA WHITEBEAR, ANTOINE AZEVEDO.(Rooney, Kenneth)
(Entered: 12/01/2011)

12/13/2011

Amended MOTION to Intervene by CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE
(Attachments: # 1 Statement of Points and Authorities in Support of Proposed
Intervenor-Defendant's Motion For Leave to Intervene, # 2 Proposed Order
Granting Proposed Intervenor-Defendant's Motion to Intervene, # 3 Motion to
Dismiss Plaintiffs' First Amended Complaint for Declaratory and Injunctive
Relief, # 4 Statement of Points and Authorities in Support of Intervenor-
Defendant's Motion to Dismiss, # 5 Declaration of Robert A. Rosette in Support
of Intervenor-Defendant's Motion to Dismiss, # 6 Exhibits A-R to Declaration
of Robert A. Rosette in Support of Motion to Dismiss, # 7 Proposed Order
Granting Intervenor-Defendant's Motion to Dismiss)(Rosette, Robert) (Entered:

https://ecf.dcd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313875599490286-L_1 0-1 3/6/2013
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12/13/2011)

12/13/2011 36 | MOTION to Expedite Consideration of Proposed Intervenor-Defendant's
Motion For Leave to Intervene As Defendant (related to Docket No. 35) by
CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE (Attachments: # 1 Proposed Order
Granting Intervenor-Defendant's Motion to Expedite Motion For Leave to
Intervene As Defendant)(Rosette, Robert) (Entered: 12/13/2011)

12/13/2011 37 | AFFIDAVIT re 35 Amended MOTION to Intervene, 36 MOTION to Expedite
Consideration of Proposed Intervenor-Defendant's Motion For Leave to
Intervene As Defendant (related to Docket No. 35) MOTION to Expedite
Counsideration of Proposed Intervenor-Defendant's Motion For Leave to
Intervene As Defendant (related to Docket No. 35) Declaration of Robert A.
Rosette in Support of Amended Motion For Leave to Intervene and Motion to
Expedite Consideration of Motion For Leave to Intervene by CALIFORNIA
VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibits A-B to Declaration of
Robert A. Rosette in Support of Proposed Intervenor-Defendant's Motion to
Intervene and Motion to Expedite Consideration of Motion to Intervene)
(Rosette, Robert) (Entered: 12/13/2011) '

12/28/2011 38 | Joint MOTION for Briefing Schedule for Cross Motions for Summary
Judgment by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, MICHAEL BLACK, CALIFORNIA
VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, LARRY ECHO HAWK,
ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, KEN SALAZAR, TRIBAL
COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON (Attachments: # 1
Text of Proposed Order)(Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 12/28/2011)

12/29/2011 39 | Memorandum in opposition to re 36 MOTION to Expedite Consideration of
Proposed Intervenor-Defendant's Motion For Leave to Intervene As Defendant
(related to Docket No. 35) MOTION to Expedite Consideration of Proposed
Intervenor-Defendant's Motion For Leave to Intervene As Defendant (related to
Docket No. 35) filed by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY
MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL
MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN
WILSON. (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Goldberg, M.) (Entered:
12/29/2011)

12/29/2011 40 | Memorandum in opposition to re 35 Amended MOTION to Intervene filed by

' ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA
DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL,
VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON. (Attachments: # 1 Text of
Proposed Order)(Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 12/29/2011)

01/03/2012 41 | Joint MOTION for Extension of Time to For Plaintiffs to Request
Supplementation of the Administrative Record by ANTOINE AZEVEDO,
MICHAEL BLACK, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA
DIXIE, LARRY ECHO HAWK, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL
MENDIBLES, KEN SALAZAR, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA
WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)
(Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 01/03/2012)

01/09/2012 42 | REPLY to opposition to motion re 35 Amended MOTION to Intervene filed by

https://ecf.dcd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313 87 5599490286-L 1 _0-1 3/6/2013
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CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE. (Rosette, Robert) (Entered:
01/09/2012)

01/09/2012 43 | REPLY to opposition to motion re 36 MOTION to Expedite Consideration of
Proposed Intervenor-Defendant's Motion For Leave to Intervene As Defendant
(related to Docket No. 35) MOTION to Expedite Consideration of Proposed
Intervenor-Defendant's Motion For Leave to Intervene As Defendant (related to
Docket No. 35) filed by CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE. (Rosette,
Robert) (Entered: 01/09/2012)

01/10/2012 44 | NOTICE OF SUPPLEMENTATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE RECORD by
MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY ECHO HAWK, KEN SALAZAR re 33
Administrative Record (Attachments: # 1 Index to the Supplement of the
Administrative Record, # 2 Exhibit A, # 3 Exhibit B, # 4 Exhibit C, # 5 Exhibit
D, # 6 Exhibit E, # 7 Exhibit F, # 8 Exhibit G, # 9 Exhibit H)(Rooney,
Kenneth) (Entered: 01/10/2012)

01/12/2012 45 | ERRATA Regarding Proposed Intervenor-Defendant's Reply to Plaintiffs'
Opposition to its Amended Motion to Intervene as Defendant by CALIFORNIA
VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE 42 Reply to opposition to Motion filed by
CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE. (Rosette, Robert) (Entered:
01/12/2012)

01/17/2012 46 | Memorandum in opposition to re 3v8 Joint MOTION for Briefing Schedule for
Cross Motions for Summary Judgment filed by CALIFORNIA VALLEY
MIWOK TRIBE. (Rosette, Robert) (Entered: 01/17/2012)

02/16/2012 47 | Amended MOTION for Briefing Schedule (Joint Motion) for Briefing Schedule
: for Cross Motions for Summary Judgment by ANTOINE AZEVEDO,
MICHAEL BLACK, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA
DIXIE, LARRY ECHO HAWK, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL
MENDIBLES, KEN SALAZAR, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA
WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)
(Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 02/16/2012)

02/29/2012 48 | Unopposed MOTION for Leave to Appear Pro Hac Vice :Attorney Name-
James F. Rusk, :Firm- Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP, :Address- 4
Embarcadero Center, 17th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94111. Phone No. - 415-
774-3232. Fax No. - 415-434-3947 by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA
VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL
MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN
WILSON (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit Declaration of James F. Rusk, # 2 Text of
Proposed Order)(Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 02/29/2012)

03/02/2012 49 | MOTION for Summary Judgment by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA

‘ VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL
MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN
WILSON (Attachments: # 1 Attachment, # 2 Text of Proposed Order)
(Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 03/02/2012)

03/02/2012 50 | ENTERED IN ERROR..... MOTION for Leave to File Supplement to
Administrative Record by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY
MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL

https://ecf.dcd.uscourts. gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313875599490286-L_1_0-1 3/6/2013
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MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN
WILSON (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 1 Affidavit of Robert Uram, # 2 Exhibit 2
Affidavit of Velma WhiteBear, # 3 Text of Proposed Order)(Goldberg, M.)
Modified on 3/5/2012 (dr). (Entered: 03/02/2012)

03/02/2012 51 | MOTION for Leave to File Supplement to Administrative Record by
ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA:
DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL,
VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 1
Affidavit of Robert Uram, # 2 Exhibit 2 Affidavit of Velma WhiteBear, # 3
Text of Proposed Order)(Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 03/02/2012)

03/05/2012 NOTICE OF CORRECTED DOCKET ENTRY: re 50 MOTION for Leave to
File Supplement to Administrative Record was entered in error and counsel has
refiled corrected documents as Docket Entry 51 (dr) (Entered: 03/05/2012)

03/21/2012 MINUTE ORDER: It is hereby ORDERED that the plaintiffs' unopposed
motion 48 be, and hereby is, GRANTED, and James F. Rusk is admitted to
appear pro hac vice. Signed by Judge Richard W. Roberts on 3/21/2012.
(lerwrl) (Entered: 03/21/2012)

03/26/2012 52 | MEMORANDUM OPINION AND ORDER granting the proposed intervenor-
defendant's amended motion 35 for leave to intervene as defendant, granting the
proposed intervenor-defendant's motion 36 to expedite, granting nunc pro tunc
the parties' joint motion 41 to extend time for plaintiffs to request
supplementation of the administrative récord, granting nunc pro tunc the parties'
amended joint motion 47 for briefing schedule, denying as moot the parties'
joint motion 38 for briefing schedule, and ordering the parties and the
intervenor to meet and confer and file by April 4, 2012 a joint status report and
proposed order reflecting deadlines for opposing and replying in support of the
intervenor's motion to dismiss and proposing any necessary amendments to the
briefing schedule for the parties' cross motions for summary judgment. The
Clerk's Office is directed to DOCKET Exhibits 3 through 7 to the proposed
intervenor-defendant's amended motion 35 for leave to intervene as the
intervenor-defendant's Motion to Dismiss the Plaintiffs' First Amended
Complaint. Signed by Judge Richard W. Roberts on 3/26/2012. (Ierwrl)
(Entered: 03/26/2012) :

03/26/2012 53 | Consent MOTION for Leave to Appear Pro Hac Vice :Attorney Name- Saba

Bazzazieh, :Firm- Rosette, LLP, :Address- 565 W. Chandler Blvd., Suite 212,
Chandler, AZ 85225. Phone No. - 480-889-8990. Fax No. - 480-889-8997 by
CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE (Rosette, Robert) (Entered:

1 03/26/2012)

03/26/2012 54 | NOTICE of Proposed Order Granting Consent Motion to Admit Attorney Saba
' Bazzazieh, Esq. Pro Hac Vice by CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE re
53 Consent MOTION for Leave to Appear Pro Hac Vice :Attorney Name- Saba
| Bazzazieh, :Firm- Rosette, LLP, :Address- 565 W. Chandler Blvd., Suite 212,
Chandler, AZ 85225. Phone No. - 480-889-8990. Fax No. - 480-889-8997
(Rosette, Robert) (Entered: 03/26/2012)

03/26/2012 58 | MOTION to Dismiss Plaintiffs' First Amended Complaint for Declératory and

https://ecf.dcd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313875599490286-L_1_0-1 3/6/2013
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Injunctive Relief by Intervenor-Defendant CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE (Attachments: # 1 Declaration of Robert A. Rosette, # 2 Exhibit A-R to
Declaration of Robert A. Rosette, # 3 Text of Proposed Order)(f, ) (Entered:
04/05/2012)

03/27/2012

STATUS REPORT reflecting deadlines for briefing Intervenor's Motion to
Dismiss by MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY ECHO HAWK, KEN SALAZAR.
(Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Rooney, Kenneth) (Entered:
03/27/2012)

03/29/2012

Cross MOTION for Summary Judgment by MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY
ECHO HAWK, KEN SALAZAR (Attachments: # 1 Memorandum in Support
of Federal Defendants' Cross-Motion for Summary Judgment, # 2 Text of
Proposed Order)(Rooney, Kenneth) (Entered: 03/29/2012)

03/29/2012

RESPONSE re 51 MOTION for Leave to File Supplement to Administrative
Record filed by MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY ECHO HAWK, KEN
SALAZAR. (Rooney, Kenneth) (Entered: 03/29/2012)

04/16/2012

MINUTE ORDER: It is hereby ORDERED that the consent motion 53 be, and
hereby is, GRANTED and Saba Bazzazieh is admitted to appear pro hac vice.
Signed by Judge Richard W. Roberts on 4/12/2012. (Icrwrl) (Entered:
04/16/2012) _

04/16/2012

MINUTE ORDER: In light of the parties' March 27, 2012 status report, it is
hereby ORDERED that responses to the intervenor's motion to dismiss are due
April 20, 2012 and the intervenor's reply is due April 27, 2012. Signed by
Judge Richard W. Roberts on 4/12/2012. (Icrwrl) (Entered: 04/16/2012)

04/17/2012

Set Deadlines: Responses due by 4/20/2012, Reply due by 4/27/2012. (hs)
(Entered: 04/17/2012)

04/20/2012

Memorandum in opposition to re 58 MOTION to Dismiss filed by ANTOINE
AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE,
ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA
WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON. (Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 04/20/2012)

04/20/2012

RESPONSE re 58 MOTION to Dismiss filed by MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY
ECHO HAWK, KEN SALAZAR. (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 1)(Rooney,
Kenneth) (Entered: 04/20/2012)

04/27/2012

| Text of Proposed Order)(Goldberg, M.) Modified on 4/30/2012 (jf, ). (Entered:

REPLY to opposition to motion re 49 MOTION for Summary Judgment <filed
by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE,
YAKIMA DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, TRIBAL
COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON. (Attachments: # 1

04/27/2012)

04/27/2012

REPLY to opposition to motion re 51 MOTION for Leave to File Supplement
to Administrative Record filed by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA
VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL
MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN
WILSON. (Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 04/27/2012)

https://ecf.dcd.uscourts.gov/cgi-bin/DktRpt.pl?313875599490286-L _1_0-1 3/6/2013
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REPLY to opposition to motion re 58 MOTION to Dismiss Plaintiff's First
Amended Complaint (Related to Dkt Nos. 58 and 60) filed by CALIFORNIA
VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE. (Rosette, Robert) (Entered: 04/27/2012)

04/27/2012

REPLY to opposition to motion re 58 MOTION to Dismiss Plaintiffs’ First
Amended Complaint (Related to Dkt. Nos. 58 and 59) filed by CALIFORNIA
VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE. (Rosette, Robert) (Entered: 04/27/2012)

04/30/2012

NOTICE OF ERROR re 61 Reply to opposition to Motion; emailed to
rgoldberg@sheppardmullin.com, cc'd 8 associated attorneys -- The PDF file
you docketed contained errors: 1. Two-part docket entry, 2. Please refile
document, 3. refile same pleading using the Opposition Event (jf, ) (Entered:
04/30/2012) '

04/30/2012

Memorandum in opposition to re 56 Cross MOTION for Summary Judgment
filed by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE,
YAKIMA DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, TRIBAL
COUNCIL. (Attachments: # 1 Text of Proposed Order)(Goldberg, M.)
(Entered: 04/30/2012) :

05/11/2012

NOTICE Filing and Service of Appendix of 33 Administrative Record
Documents Relied upon in Briefing on Intervenors' Motion to Dismiss by
ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE, YAKIMA
DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL,
VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 1, # 2
Exhibit 2)(Goldberg, M.) Modified on 5/14/2012 (jf, ). (Entered: 05/11/2012)

05/18/2012

REPLY to opposition to motion re 56 Cross MOTION for Summary Judgment
filed by MICHAEL BLACK, LARRY ECHO HAWK, KEN SALAZAR.
(Rooney, Kenneth) (Entered: 05/18/2012)

06/01/2012

NOTICE by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE, YAKIMA DIXIE, ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES,
TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON re 33
Administrative Record (Attachments: # 1 Exhibit 1 - Index to Appendix, # 2
Exhibit 2 Part 1, # 3 Exhibit 2 Part 2, # 4 Exhibit 2 Part 3, # 5 Exhibit 2 Part 4,
# 6 Exhibit 2 Part 5)(Goldberg, M.) (Entered: 06/01/2012)

06/01/2012

69

ADMINISTRATIVE RECORD by ANTOINE AZEVEDO, YAKIMA DIXIE,
ANTONIA LOPEZ, MICHAEL MENDIBLES, TRIBAL COUNCIL, VELMA
WHITEBEAR, EVELYN WILSON. (See Dokcet Entry 68 to view document).
(znmw, ) (Entered: 06/04/2012)
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
© FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA
Civil Division

THE CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK
TRIBE,

11178 Sheep Ranch Road

Mountain Ranch, CA 95246

THE TRIBAL COUNCIL,
11178 Sheep Ranch Road
Mountain Ranch, CA 95246°

YAKIMA DIXIE,
11178 Sheep Ranch Road
Mountain Ranch, CA 95246

VELMA WHITEBEAR,
213 Downing Drive
Galt, CA 95632

ANTONIA LOPEZ,
P.O. Box 1432 '
Jackson, CA 95642

MICHAEL MENDIBLES,
P.O. Box 266
West Point, CA 95255

EVELYN WILSON,

4104 Blagen Blvd.
West Point, CA 95255

ANTONE AZEVEDO, >
4001 Carriebee Ct. .
North Highlands, CA 95660

. v’

KEN SALAZAR, in his official capac1ty as

Secretary of the United States Department of the

Interior,

United States Department of the Interior
1849 C Street, N.W.

Washington, D C. 20240

LARRY ECHO HAWK, in his official capacity as
. Assistant Secretary-Indian Affairs of the United
States Department of the Interior, - .
Department of the Interior '
1849 C Street, N.W.
Washington DC 20240

MICHAEL BLACK, in his official capacity as

Director of the Bgreau of Indian Affairs within the

Case No: 1:11-cv-00160-RWR
Hon. Richard W. Roberts '

-1--

CGCC - RJN - 001
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United States Department of the Interior,
Bureau of Indian Affairs .
MS-4606 :

1849 C Street, N.W.

‘Washington, D.C. 20240

Defendants.

PLAINTIFFS' FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE
' RELIEF '

' Plaintiffs ask the Cotrt to vacate an erroneous decision of the Assistant Secretary ~ Indian
'Affairs for the United States Department of the I,nterilor ("Department"f) that arbitrarily limits the
“membership of a federally recognized Indian tribe to five people and disenfranchises 242 adult

members of the tribe plusvtheir' children, without due process and in violation of the Departnxept‘s trust,
reéponsibilities to Indian triEes and their members. Because the decision ldmwingly recognizes a
tribal government based on-a tribal document adopted without fhe lmoWledge, participatioﬁ or consent

of the vast majority of the tribe's members, it violates federal law and must be reversed.

Plaintiffs Yakima Dixie the California Valley Miwok Tribe ("T'ribe") aﬁd Tribe members
Velma Whitebear, Antoma Lopez Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and Antone Azevedo,
. individually and as members of the Trlbal Council ("Council"), therefore submit this First Amended ,
‘Complamt against the Defendants, Ken Salazar Secretary of the Department, Larry Echo Hawk, "
Assistant Secreta1 y— Indian Affalrs ("AS-IA") of the Department and M1chael Black, D1rector of the

Bureau of Indian Affau's ("BIA") within the Department, and state and allege as follows:

INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY

L. The _Tribe is a federally recognized Indian tribe that was recognized around 1915 when
the United States purchased the Sheep Ranch Rancheria. for the benefit of a small band of Miwok

'Indians living near Sheep Ranch, California. Today the Tribe has approximately 242 adult members,
2-
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and approximately 350 members under the age of 18, who are lineal descendants of the original 1915

members.

2. In 1935, the Tribe voted to accept the Indian Rooiganization Act of 1934 ‘("IRA"),.
. which allowed trioes to assume the responsibility of self-government by adopting governing
documents and establishing a tribal government. The process of creating a tribal government is known
as "organization," or sometimes "reorganization." For tribes that have accepfed the IRA, organization
must comply with the substantive and prooedural requirements of the IRA..
3. | Despite'a'ccopting the IRA, the Tribe has never organized itself. For many years its
members ﬁalntained only an informal Tribal comnlunity, nlthough many lived on the Rancheria at
© yarious times or in the surroundxng area and mamtamed familial and cornmunity ties.
4, In 1998, af the BIA's urging, a woman named Silvia Burley approached Yaknna Dixie,
' whom the BIA recognized asa Tribal spokesperson at that time. Ms. Burley, a resident of a
neighboring Indian colnﬁmn’ity, al‘sked to be enrolled into the Tribe along with her. two daughters and
her granddaughter (collectively, the "Burleys"). ‘The BIA erroneously told M. Dixie that he had the
authority to enroll the Bnrleyé into the Tribe, and ho ag'reed to do so. The BIA theréafter ’;reatéd the
Burleys as Trib al members, although their enrollment was invalid without Tnbal consent.
5. Around September 1998, Mr. Dixie and Ms. Burley began dlscussxons w1th the BIA
.about orgamzmg the Tribe. The BIA erroneously told Mr. Dme that the people ent1tled to partlc1pate
in the mxtlal organlzatlon of the Tribe were determined by a plan for dlstnbutlon of tribal assets that
had been approved in 1966 as part of an unsuccessful attempt to, “terminate” the Tr1be under the
California Ranchoria Act. The BIA concluded that tllese people included Mr. Dixie, his brother
Melvin Dixie,A and the Burleys tby virtue of thein purported enrollment), and thnt those individﬁals :
" were entitled to decido who else might participate in Trib.al organization. This conclusion was and is

incorrect.
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6. Contrary to the BIA’s conclusion, all lineal descendants of the Tribe's original members

" (circa 1915) were members of the Tribe in 1998 and were entitled to participate in any organization

effort. OF the Tribe’s currént members, at least 83 were alive and over the age of 18 in 1998 and were

entitled to participate in any organization of the Tribe (the “1998 Adult Members”). Other, now-

deceased me1nbers were also alive in 1998 and entitled to participate. .

' 7.  TheBIA s_ugge_ste_d to Mr. Dixie that the Tribe form a general council as an interim step
in order to manage .itself until lit had adopted a constitutioh and completed the organization PrOCEss as
deﬁned in the IRA. A general eounc11 is a form of government cons1st1ng of all of a tribe’s members.

The BIA supplied a resolution purporting to create such a general councﬂ and Mr. D1x1e and Ms.

. Burley signed the resolution on November 5, 1998 (the "1998 Resolution”). The adoptl_on_ of the 1998

Resolution was invalid.

8. The Tribe never completed the organization process that the 1998 Resolution was

intended to facilitate. A di‘spute.erupted between Ms. Burley and Mr. Dixie over control of the

organization process, with both sides pursuing organization under separate documents.

9. " TheBIA rej ected constitutions that Ms. Bﬁrley submitted in the name of the Tribe in

1999, -2000, 2001 and 2004 which essentlally would have lmnted Tribal membershlp to Mr. Dixie, the

. Burleys and their descendants The BIA reversmg the erroneous advrce it provrded Mr Dixie in

1999, mformed Ms. Burley that organization must 1nvolve the entn‘e Tribal commumty, and it

identified a number of other peOple who must be allowed to participate; including the lineal
descendants of historical Tribe members. Ms. Burley responded by ﬁhng a series. of administrative _
appeals and federal court chal_lengesseeking to compel the BIA to recognize the Tribe as organized

under her constitution and with her as its leader.
10.  Ms. Burley's appeals culminated'in a 2006 decision by the federal district court for the

District of Columbia, which upheld the BIA's rejection of Ms. Burley's 2004 constitution. The court
-4-
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held that the IRA imposes fundamental requirements on tribél organization, includtng notice, a defined
process, and minimum levels of participation, California Valley Miwok T'ribe v. Unt’i‘ed States,: 424
F .Supe.Zd 197 (D.D.C. Mar. 31, 5006). The federal government argued that the BIA has a "duty to
ensure that the interests of all tribe members are protected c‘iuring organization and that governing
‘do.cuments reflect the will of a maj ority of the Tribe's members," and the court agreed. Because the =
BIA estimated that the.T ribal comntunity entitled.to participate in organization "may exceed 250
’ ntembers,_" while Ms. Burley hact involved only herself and her daughters, rej ection ot the Burley
constitution was censistent with the BIA's duty. | |

11.  The Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit affirmed in a published |
opm}on, holding that "Although [the Tnbe], by its own adm1ssmn has a potential membership of 250,
only Burley and her small group of supporters had a hand in adoptmg her proposed constitution. This
éntimajoritarian gambit deserves no stamp of api)roval 'from the Secretary." California Valley' Miwok
Ti rzbe 2 Unzred States, 515 F.3d 1262, 1267 (D.C. Cir. 2008) | -

: 12: Following the district court's de0131on in 2006 the BIA attempted to assist the Tnbe in
idehtifying. its entire membership by asking descendents of the 1915 memb‘el_'s to submit genealogies
showing their status as lineal de,sceﬁdahts of historical Tribe members. Once the lineal descendants
were identified, the BIA hlanned to arrange a meeting so the members could proceed with Tribal
orgahiiation if they wished to do so. Ms. Burley filed administrative appeals, 'essentially attemht,iné to
re-litigate her I'Jrevious position that the Tribe was already organized under. her leadership. Those
appeals extentually led to a.decision on August 31, 2011 by the AS-IA (Exhibit "A") (the "August 31
Decision"). o ‘

13.  Inthe August 31 Decision, the AS-IA found-, without any explanation or suppott, that .

the membership of the Tribe is limited to five people. Indoing so, he’ighored the overwhelming
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evidence before him that the Tribe's membership currerltly irlcludes 242 adult members and their
childrerx, who are lineal desc_encIa'nts of historical Tribe members.

14,  Inthe August 31 Decision, the AS-IA found that those ﬁr/e peeple had established a
valid Tribal government under the 1998 Resolution. The 1998 Resolution was void ab initio as a
Tribal action and could nor be a valid governing document because it was adopted without netice to,
or-consent of, a vast majority of the Tribe and did not comply with the IRA. '.

15. In the August 31 Decision, the Aé—IA explicitly .repudiated arrd failed to carry out the
BIA's duty to ensure tlrat the interests of all Tribal.members are broteeted during orgauiaation, and that
the governing documents fer the Tribe reflect the will of a majority ef the members, as required by the

IRA and biriding decisional Jaw of this Circuit.. lTh"e AS-IA has no authority to do sa.

16. | The August 31 Decision cedes complete control of the Tribe te the Burleys and
depnves Plamtlffs and the Tnbe $ other members of fundamental nghts in v1olat10n of the U.S.
’Consnmtron, the Ind1an le Rights Act, the IRA, the Department’s trust respons1b111ty to the Tnbe

and its members, and other federal laws. .

JURISDICTION AND VENUE -

17.  This Court has Junsdlctlon over this actlon pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 because the
asserted clalms arise under the Constltutlon and 1avvs of the Un1ted States. . |

18. Th1s Court also has Junschctlon over th1s action pursuant to 28 US.C.§ 1361 in that the
Tribe seeks to compel officers and employees of the United States and its agenciés to perform duties
owed to the Tribe. |

19.. ‘ Th1s Court also has jurisdiction over thls‘acuon pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1362 because
the Tribe is an Indxan tribe duly reco gmzed by the Secretary of the Interior, and the matter in -

controversy arises iinder the Constitution, laws or treaties of the United States.
-6~
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20.  Venue is proper in this Court undef 28 US.C. § 13'91(6:) because the Secretary, the AS-
1A, the Director of the BIA, and the Department are located in thls district.
21, Judicial review of the agency action is authorized by the Admmlstratwe Procedure Act
("APA™),5 US.C. §§ 702, 704 and 706. The AS+IA's decision is ﬁnal agency action under the APA

and 25 CFR §2. 6(c)

‘ 22. " The requested declaratory and 1nJunctlve relief is authorized by 28 U.S.C. §§ 2201-
2202, |
23. . Plaintiffs have exhausted their administrative remedies and are not required to pursue
'edditional adﬁinistratiye reneedies before seeking and obtaining judicial relief.
24.  Anactual case and controversy has arisen and now exists between the parties with
regard te the AS-IA's violations of the constitetipnal provisions, statutes and regulations cited herein.
PARTIES |
25. Plamtlff California Valley Miwok Tribe, also known as the "Sheep Ranch Rancheria,"
the “Sheep Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Ind1ans of Cahforma " and the "Sheep Ranch Band of Me-
wuk Indians of the Sheep Ranch Ranchena,'f is a federally r_ecogmzed Indian fribe situated in Sheep
Ranch, California, in Calaveras County. The Tribe eonsists of Indian members and their descendants,
and/or their Ind1an successors in interest, for whose benefit the Umted States acqulred and created the
Sheep Ranch Ranchena As of April 30 2011, the membersh1p of the Tnbe consisted of 242 adult ‘
members and the1r ch;ldren ("Current Members”) At least 83 members of the Tribe were ahve andat
Jeast 18- years old on November 5, 1998 ("1998 Adult Members")..
26.  Plaintiff Yakima Dixie is the Traditienal Spokesperson, and the historical Cheirperson, ,
of the California Valley Miwok Tribe and a member ef its Tribal Council. Miwok tribes ese the term
"spokesperson" rather than "chief" te describe their traelitional leaders, reflecting ‘the Miwok tradition -

of consensus-based government.
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27.  Plaintiff Tribal Council is the__legitimate governing body of the Tribe as recognized by a
majorit§ of Tribal members. The Council consists of Mr. Dixie and Tribe memhers Velma Whitebear,

Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson, Antone Azevedo, Shirley Wilson and Iva

Carsoner.

28.  Plaintiffs Velma WhlteBear Antonia Lopez M1chae1 Mendibles, Evelyn Wllson and
Antone Azevedo are members of the Tribe and of the Tribal Counc1l Each is a lineal descendant of a
historical member-of members of the Tribe.

| 29, Defendant Ken Salazar is the Secretary of the United States Department of the Interior.
Mr. Salazar is respons1b1e for the supervision of the various federal agen01es and bureaus wrthm the .
Department, including the BIA. Mr. Salazar is an officer or employee of the United States and has a
direct statutory duty to carry out the provisions of the IRA and cther relevant laws, M. Salazar is
sued in his official capacity- only. | | H

30.  Defendant Larry Echo Hawk is the AS-IA of the Department and head of the Bureau of
Indian Affairs. Mr Echo Hawk issued the August 31 Decrslon that is challenged in this action. Mr
Echo Hawk is sued in his ofﬁc1a1 capacity only

31, Michael Black is the Director of the Bureau of Indian Affairs within the Derrartment. _
Mr. Black is responsible for the day-ro-day operations of the BIA,-incIuding its relations with federally
recogmzed Indlan tribes. Mr Black is sued in his cfﬁc1a1 capacity only. |

RELEVANT FACTS

Trib al History and Membership
3. Im 1915 a Umted States Indian Service official discovered a small cluster of Mrwok
Indians living in or near Sheep Ranch California, which was a remnant of a once- larger band. In 1916

the United States purchased approxrmately one acre of land near Sheep Ranch and created the Shecp
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- Ranch Rancheria for the benefit of those Indians. The United States 'subsequently recognized the
Sheep Ranch Band of Me-wuk Indians as a federal Indian tribe. .

33. The 1n1t1a1 members of the Tribe were those listed in the 1915 Sheep Ranch Indian
census. Their names were: Peter Hodge, Annie Hodge, Mahda Hodge, Lena Hodge, Tom Hodge,
| Andy Hodge, Jeff Davis, Betsey Davis, Mrs. Limpey, John Tecumchey, Pinkey Tecumchey and
Mamy Dmcaﬁ. Peter Hodgé was their leader.

34, In 1935, the United States held an election in which Tribal members voted on whether
£o éccept or reject the application of the IRA to the 'i‘ribe;’. The United States' 1935 IRA approved
voter list for the ’I_‘ribé listed one T. ribé member: Jeff bavis. '

35, ° The 'individuals listed in the 1915 Sheep Ranch indian census aﬁd in the 1935 IRA
approved voter list f§r the Tribe were members of the Tribe. " |

"36. The linégll-descendanté of thc; individuals listed in the 1915 Sheep Ranch Indian depsus-
énci in the 1935 IRA approved yoter list for the Tribe were, and are, meﬁbers of the Tribe at all times
relevant to this iitigation. |

- . The Indian Reorganization Act

-37. | The.Tribe voted to accept the IRA in 1935.”

38, The IRA allows Indian tr1bes to "orgamze "or form a tnbal govemment by adoptmg a
written constitution or other governing documents. Successful or gamzatlon allows a tnbe to estabhsh
- ' gdvemment-to—govemment relations with the United States and with state and local govemment;e,.

39.  For Tribes that hf;wé accepted it,~the IRA establishes' i:)rocedural and subét,an’;ivc
requirements for organization. 'fhese requirements .includc notice, a defined process, and minimum
levgls of parFicipation by a tribe’s members. |

"40.  Under the IRA, the Secretary has a dutyto ensure that the Department reco gﬁizes oﬁly

a2 legitimate tribal government that reflects the participation and consent of a majority of the Tribe’s
o
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membership. This duty is informed and strengthened by the United States’ trust obligations to Indian
tribes and their memB_ers.
.The California Rancheria Act and Failure to Terrﬁinate.the Tribe
41,  In 1958, Congress enacted the California Rancheria Act,Awhich authorized the
S_ec'retary‘:to terminate the lands‘and trust status of enumerated Indian tribes on California Rancherias
uﬁ'dcf certain conditions.
. 42" . The Tribe was never tem‘;inated pursuant to the California Rancheria Act. The United
States has recognized the T;ibe as' an Indian Tribe since its inception and continues to do so.
| The Invalid 1998 Resolution | |
43,  The 1998 Resolution recites that it was sighed by a majority of the Tribé's adult
'mefnbers. Thét is incorrect. A “majority” rﬁeans more than ong-half. "Only two.peoplé signed the '.
1998 Resolution. | | |
44, ﬂe 1998 Resolution identified foﬁ Tribal members who were adults in. 1998: Yalkima '
Dixie,‘Mélvin Dixie, Silvia Burléy and Rashel Rezriof. 'The 1998 Resolution did not sfate that these
wére the only members of the T;ibe. It recited that that Tﬁb_e consiéted of "at least" those members.
The identification of the Buﬂeys :as members was incorrect becaus;e Yakima Dixie did not have ﬁe
authority to anrpll them into the Tribe without the donsen£ of the Tribe's exisﬁng n’llembers.
45. V' ‘The 1998 Adult Members were also members of the Tribe in November 1998. There
were also many otﬁer'members in 1'998 S;vho have di‘ed since theﬁ. Except for Yakima Dixie, none of .
the 1998 Adult 1nember§ or the now-deceased members signed the 1998 Resolution.'
46.  Neither Melvin Dixie nor any of the 1998 Adult Members (except for Yakima Dixie) or
the now-deceased membe;s récéived actual or constructivé notice 5f the 1998 Resolution prior to its
édoption or were provided with an opportunity to participate in the process of drafting or ‘,'foting on the

1998 Res_onlution-. Most or all of these members were living in the vicinity of the Sheep Ranch
-10-
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Rancheria in 1998, were readily identiﬁéble as Tribal members, and were known or should have been
_known to the BIA.
47.  The 1998 Resolution was 'invalid and of ﬁo force and effec‘; becausé it was adopted |
_ withou.t notice fo, pa‘rticip.ation by, or consent of a majority of .the Tﬁge's adult members.

Burley Seeks Control of the Tribe o
48.  Shortly after her purported enrollment, Ms. Burley soﬁght to take control of the Tribe.

The 1998 Resolution named Mr. Dixie as the Tribe's chairperson. Butin April 1999, Burley claimed
that she was the Chairperson. That claim .Was and is faise.' | |

49, Burley submi;cted proposed Tribal coﬁsti‘aitiogé to-the BIA in 1999,'2000 and 2001.
- The constitutions would I_xave limited Tribal bmembership to the Bu%leYs, their descendants and, i@
some cases, Mr. Dixie. No Tfibal member except 'f'or the Burleys had:,any part m the development or
- ratification of these co'nstitutioﬁs. | |

50.  The BIA did not approve any of the constitutions that Burley submitted.

"lfhe’ BIA Rejects Burley’s 2004 Cﬁnstitution :
51. Burley submitted another propos'ed constitution to the_'BIA in Feb;‘uafy 2004, .
purpo;'fedly to demon's'tfate that the Tribe was already orgénized §viﬂ1 Ms Burley as its leader.
52, | Although Bprley had‘acknowledgéd in federal court in 2602 that the Tribe had a
poténtial ciﬁiénshi_p Qf '“neariy 250 pébpie,” her prc;po'sedic':onstitution redognized oniy :ﬁve mer;ibers.
. 53.' In a March 26, 2004 letter to Burley, the BIA declined to-approve her latest
coistitution. The BIA explained that efforts to organize a Tribe must reflect the involvement of the
. whole tribal community: | |

- Whiere a tribe that has not previously organized seeks to do so, BIA also has a-
responsibility to determine that the organizational efforts reflect the involvement of the

" whole tribal community. We have not seen evidence that such general involvement
was attempted or has occurred with the purported organization of your tribe. ... To our
knowledge, the only persons of Indian descent involved in the tribe's organization

-11-
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efforts, were you and your two daughters . . .. Itis only after the greater tribal
community is initially identified that governing documents should be drafted and the

Tribe's base roll and membership criteria identified.

The BIA's letter identified several groups of Tribe members and segments of the tribal community

who should be involved in the initial organization effoﬁs.

54, The BIA's létter stated that "the BIA does not ye’ﬁ view [the_ .Tribe] to Be an 'organized'
Indian Tribe" and thgt, because the Tribe Wés unorganized, the BIA could no;c recognize Burley as the
Tﬁbe‘s chairpergon. | |

55. On February 11, 2005, the AS-IA.seﬁt a letter to Mr. Dixie an_d Burley in which he
reitérated many of th¢ decisions made in thé BIA's March 26, 2004 letter. The AS-IA stated:

In that [2004] letter, the BIA made clear that the Federal government did not recognize
Ms. Burley as the tribal Chairman. ., . Until such time as the Tribe has organized, the
Federal government can recognize no one, including yourself, as the tribal Chairman. I
encourage you . . . to continue your efforts to organize the Tribe along the lines outlined
in the March 26, 2004 letter so that the Tribe can become organized and enjoy the full
benefits of Federal recognition, The first step in organizing the Tribe is identifying -
putative tribal members.’ S .

~56.  The AS-IA's 2005 le_tter.made clear that the BIA's rejection of Ms. Burley's constitution -

implicitly encompassed any ;md all uibal‘goveming documents submitted prior to that date, and any

pﬁrported Tribal government created by any such documents: "In light of the BIA's letter of March 26,

2004 . .. the BIA does not recognize any Tribal governmént . (emphasis added).

57.  After the AS-IA's 2005 determination, the BIA sought to work with Mr. Dixie's Tribal

" Council and the Tribe to complete the organization process. Mr. Dixie and the BIA. invited Burley to

parﬁcipate? but she again refused and instead filed suit challenging the AS-IA's decision.
The District Court and Court of Appeals Uphold the BIA's Decision
58.  In April 2005, Burley filed suit in the federal district court for the District of Columbia,

in the name of the Tribe. The suit challengéd the BIA's rejection of the ¢onstitution submitted by

Buzley and its refusal to reco gnize any governing documents or governing body of the Tribe. Burley
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sought a judgment tﬁat the Tribe had the inherent sovereign authority to adopt governing documents
outside of the IRA and that the Tribe was lawfully organized pursuant to that authority. Burlcy'di'd not
contest the BIA‘S specific decision not to recognize her as the Tribal Chairperson. '

59. Thf; district court dismissed Burley's claims in March 2006. The court noted that the
- Burleys had submitted a constitution that "conferred tﬁbal membeérship only upon them and their
deécendants ... [but] the government estimates that the greater tﬁbal cqmmunify, which should be _
included in the organization process; may exceed 250 -members." The c'durt found tl;_xai the Secretary
has "a réspénsibility to ensure that [she] deals only with ‘a tribal goyernment that éctually represents
the membérs of a tribe" and tha;c.. the BIA has é "duty.to enéurc that the interests of all tribe members
aré protecteci during organization and that governing documents reflect the will of a majority of thé
Tribe's mel;rlbers.;' California Valley Miwok Tribe, supra, 424 F .Supp;id 197. This is true "whether
-~ or not [a tribe] choose[s] to organize unde; the IRA. proced:ures [of section 476(2))." The court found
the BIA's decisions consistent with that duty. |

60. 'Burl.ey challenged the district court's decision, and the Court of‘Appeals for the District .
of Columbia Circuit aﬂifméd. Calz’fornia‘ Valley Miwok Tribe, supra, 515 F.3d 1262. Accordixig to.
the Court of Appeals, the rejection of the Burley governmient and constitution fulfilled a cornersténe of ..
the United States’ trust obligation to Indian tribes: to""promote a-tribe's political integrity, which-
includes ensuring that the will of tribal members is ot thwarted by rogue leaders when it comes to
" decisions affecting federal benefits." |
61; " The Court of Appeals further explained:

In Burley's view, the Secretary has no role in determining whether a tribe has properly
organized itself . . .. That cannot be. ... [TThe Secretary has the power to manage “all
Indian affairs and all matters arising out of Indian relations.” .. . The exercise of this
authority is especially vital when, as is the case here, the government is determining
whether a tribe is organized, and the receipt of significant federal benefits turns on the -
decision. The Secretary suggests that her authority . . . includes the power to reject a
proposed constitution that does not enjoy sufficient support from a tribe's membership.
Her suggestion is reasonable, particularly in light of the federal government's unique
trust obligation to Indian tribes. (Emphasis in original.)

13-
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" The court concluded:

Although [the Tribe], by its own admission, has a potential membership of 250, only-
Burley and her small group of supporters had a hand in adopting her proposed
constitution, This antimajoritarian gambit deserves no stamp of approval from the
Secretary. ' . '

The Department's Representations in Federal Court

62. In its brief to the D.C. Circuit, the United States Deﬁartment of Justice, on behalf of the
Departmént of the Interior, stated, inter alia:

[TThe Burley Government does not dispute that the vast maj ority of the potential
membership of the Tribe did not have an opportunity to participate in the election of
Burley as chairperson or in the adoption of the government documents. Instead, the
Burley Government argues that BIA was required, under 25 U.S.C. § 476(h), to
. recognize the Tribe as organized, and to recognize the Burley Goveinment and its ,

- proffered governing documents, notwithstanding this lack of participation. The district
court properly rejected this argument, reasoning that while Section 476(h) recognizes
the "inherent sovereign power" of "each Indian tribe" to "adopt governing documents
under procedures other than those specified in" the IRA, Section 476(h) does not
eliminate the IRA's fequirements that governing documents be ratified by a majority
vote of the adult members of the tribe. : ‘ ‘ ‘

63. The United States further stated in its brief:

~ Section 476(h) does not impose a duty on BIA to recognize a tribal government or
‘governing documents where, as here, they are adopted without the consent or
participation of a majority of the tribal community. Nothing in Section 476(h) suggests
_ that Congress intended to alter the substantive standards that apply when a tribe seeks

to organize, including Section 476(a)(1)'s requirement that governing documents be
“ratified by a majority of adult members of the tribe." In addition, for an "Indian tribe"
to organize under the IRA, action by the tribe as a whole is required; action by an
unrepresentative faction is insufficient. C

The government added that "nothing in Section 476(h) limits the Secretary's broad authority —

independent of the IRA — to ensure the legitimacy of any purported tribal government that seeks to

. engage in that govefr_uneﬁt—to-government relationship with the United States" (emphasis added).

64.  The government also stated in its brief that "the Burley Government [cannot] speak(]

for the Tribe in the exercise of [the Tribe's] sovereign power . .. because the undisputed facts show

-14-
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that the Burle}; Government was elected, an'd,' its governing .documents adopted, by just three people
and without the particip‘ation of the vast maj orit}} of the potential members of the Tribe."
| Mr. Dixie's Efforts to Organize the Tribe
65.  While the Burleys were attempting to limit the Tribe to their immediate family, Mr.
Dixie and other Tribal members began to identify and bring together all of the Tribe's members.
Beginning in 2003, they held open meetings of the 'I;ribe's membership each month, which have been
" held evef since. kThey also formed the Tribal Council. . o
66. vThe Council met with the BIA in September 2003 and requested that the BIA call an
electloh pursuant to the IR_A to adopt a Tribal constitunon and estabhsh govemment—to government
relations with the United States. The BIA did not act on the Councﬂ's request but contmued to meet
regulariy Wlth Mr. Dixie and the Council to discuss efforts to organize the Tnbe
67. - With the support and participation of the Tribe's members, the Trlbal Counc11 has met
approx1mate1y every other month since its formation to dlscuss Tribal pohcy, enact resolutions, and
conduct other Tribal busmess The Council has made great strides in rebuilding a functlonmg Tribal
commumty Sincé at least 2004 the Tribe and its members have- engaged ina varlety of cultural,
‘religious, economic and social activities that benefit the full Tribal membership, strengthen the Tnbal
community and restore historic ties with the larger Indian commumty Tribal activities include:
a. The Tnbe intervenes in child custody proceedmgs under the Indian Ch11d
’ Welfare Act, on behalf of children of Tnbe members In those cases where a ch11d is removed from its -
v family, the Tribe seeks to have the child placed with an Indlan family or a family with ties to Ind1an
traditions, so that the child is not depnved of i 1ts cultural herltage and place in the Indlan commuuity.
Burley has opposed the Tribe's efforts in these cases.
| b | The California Native American Heritage Cormhissioh has-recoghized the

Tribe’s Cultural Preservation Comm__ittee. Several Tribe members have been tratned-to Serve as
-15-
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cultural monitors on behalf of the Tribe and have performed monitoring at construction sites that may ,

affect Native American cultural and religious artifacts.

c. . The Tribe participates, rvith other Miwok tribes, in an intertribal Miwok
Language Restoration Group that teaches the Miwok language to younger tribe membere so that the
language and the tribal traditions are not lost. Plaintiff Evelyn Wilson is the senior Miwok member
who still speaks the Miwok language

d. The Sheep Ranch Rancheria Me-wuk Dancers ("Me-wuk Dancers"),

| ceremonial In_dian_ dance and cultural preservation group, represent the Tribe at native American
events thronghout California. Tribe members Gilbert Ramirez and his son Pete Ramirez organized the
Me-wuk Dancers group a‘r the request of Tribal elders. The Me-wuk Dancers play an irnportant role in
preservmg the language, cultural identity and rehglous traditions of the Tribe.

e.  The Tnbe has been negotiating with the United States Forest Service ("USFS")
regarding construction of a traditional Indlan "bru'sh house" on USFS land near the Tribe's ancestral '
vrllage A brush house is an open—roofed burldmg for conductmg dances and other tradmonal '
ceremonies. It is akey element in Indian cultural and religious traditions, equivalent to a tnbe s
church. ' o .

f. Smce 2004, the Tr1be has been partrcrpatmg in the Calaveras Healthy Impact K

| Products Solutions project ("CHIPS"), a commumty supported project that sceks to reduce w1ldﬁre
hazards to local communrtres while providing economic opportunity for local workers, CHIPS
'received' a grant from the United States Department of Agriculture in 2007 to support retraining for
worlkers to particrpate in new jobs within the forestry and vegetation control industry. Among other
things, CHIPS has trained Native American workers, including Tribe‘memhers; to perform restoration

~ work on federal lands that contain sensitive Native American heritage resources.

-16-
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g Through CHIPS and the Amador-Calaveras Consensus Gfoup ("ACCG"), a
community coalition, the Tribe has been engaged in efforts to participate in the USFS Collaborative
F oreet Landscape Restoration Program ("CFLRP"). Participation in the CFLRP would allow local
_ workers to work with the USFS aﬂd Bureau of Land Management ("BLM") on landscape restoration

and forest steveardshiﬁ prejects. In particular, ’ehe USFS‘is. seeldlag Native American crews (such as
those trained by CHIPS? to participate in programs to reintroduce ﬁre as a management technique on -
federal lands with sensiti‘;fe Native American heritage‘resourc'es. The participation of the .Tribe is
1mp0rtant to the success of the commumtys CFLRP proposal
| h. Tribe members gather certain matenals such as raptor feathers that are needed
for cultural and religlous ceremonies. Only members of Indian tribes can~1.egally possess these
materials. Tribe members also g'athef materials, such as aative plants and willow roots, used in
ﬁadiﬁohal crafts such as basket weaving, and offer classes iﬁ those crafts to ensure that the skills are
not leet. |
| | 1 | The Tribe parf.icipates m the ‘aimual Salmon Distribution Pl;Oj e'et in wﬁ_ich it
‘obtains several for_zs ef fresh salmon from the Oroville Dam _hatchefy and distributes it to Tribe -
members. |
j Tl'le'Tflibe is iavoh-fed in Indian health services, emergency services and food
distribution programs; including the MACT Indian health services pro gfam, that benefit members of .
. the 'l;ﬁi)e aad other Indian tribes. |
- 68. In 2006 the Tribal Council adopted a Tribal consntutlon, which estabhshed that the -
Tribe's first pnorlty was to 1dent1fy and enroll all Tribal members—l e. those who are hneal
descendants of one or more historical members of the Tribe, as documented by personal genealo gies,
birth records and other documents Under the Councﬂ's leadership, the Tribe has identified several

* hundred members who wish to part1c1pate in the orgamzatmn of the Tnbe The Tribal roster as of
-17-
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April 30, 201 1, consists of 242 adult memhers and approximately 350 childten under the age of 18.
. Bach of these members is a lineal descendant of one or more historicat members of the Tribe, as
documented by personal genealogies, birth records and other records.

69. Since 2006, the members of the Tribe have devoted countless hours to draftiné a -
revised constitution through an open and U'anspa:rent process The contents of the constitution have
been read and debated in many Tribal meetings, including spec1a1 meetings called spec1ﬁca11y for that
purpose. All such meetings were open to the entire Tribal community. The Tribe has provided the
Butleys with notiee and an oioportunity to 'partici'pate, but _they refused to do so. . | |

' 70; On July 26, 2011, the Tribe adopted Resolution 2011-07-16(b), establishing an Election
Committee and providing for voter registration in order to facilitate a Trib ai eleetion to adopt and
ratify the revised constitution.ll The Tribe prov'ided the Assistant Secretary and the BIA with notice of
Resolutlon 2011 07-16(b) and of its intent to hold an electlon The only action that remams to |
. complete the Tribal orgamzatlon process is ﬁnal rat1ﬁcat1on and adoption of the const1tut10n by the
entire Tribal membership. The Tribe plans on holdmg an electlon for that purpose, consistent with the
The BIA Attempts to Assist the Trlbe In Orgamzmg
7?. On November 6, 2006, after the district court had dlsm1ssed Burley s claims, the BIA
informed Ms. Burley’ that it Would ass1st the Trlbe in orgamzmg accordmg to majoritarian principles,
consistent with the decisions upheld by the court.
| 72. .Ms. Burley appealed the Superintendent's Novembet 6, 2006 decision to the BIA's
Pacific Regional Director. On April 2, 2007, the Regtonal Director.afﬁnned the decision and
remanded the matter back to the Superintendent to 1mp1ement the actions mentioned in the
November 6, 2006 dec1s1on The Regmnal Director wrote "We believe the main purpose [of the’

November 6, 2006 dec1s1on] was to assist the Tribe in identifying the whole commumty, the ‘putative’
..:1 8-
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group, who would be entitled to particip_ate m the Tribe's efforts to organize a government that will
represent the Tribe as a whole. . . . It is our belief that until the Tribe has identified the ‘putative’
group, the Tribe will not have a solid foundation upoﬁ which to euild a stable government."

73.  On April 10 and April 17, 2007, the BIA publishe(i public notice of an upcoming
meetiné to organize the Tribe. The notice requested that Putative Members submit doeumentation of

_ their membership claim to the BIA (e.g., personal genealogies). The public no’eice defined the Putative
Membe:s as lineal descendants of: (1) individuals lieted on the 1915 Indiaﬁ Census of Sheep-ranch
Indians; (2) indiﬁduals listed as eligible voters on the fede;al govemmenﬁs 1935 IRA voting list for
the Ranchen'a,; and (3) individuals listed on the plan for dietribution of the assets of Sheep Ranch
Rancheria (which mcluded only Mabel Hodge D1x1e)

74. . Accordmg to the BIA, approxxmately 580 persons submitted personal genealogles to
the BIA in response to the Apnl 2007 public notices. Plaintiff§ Velma Whitebear, Antonia Lopez,
Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and Antone A_zevedoleach submitted gehealogies and other -

' documentatioe to tﬁe BIA in response to tﬁe public noﬁces; None of the Bﬁrleys submitted
docur'nentafcion in 'responee to the public notices. The BIA has no’e released the genealogies or the
results of its analysis of the information submitted.' The Tribe has separately obtained genealogies

 from each of its members. _ |
Burley Attempts. to Re-Litigate Her Claims Before the Board - .
75.  Burley appealed the Regional Director's April 2, 2007 deeision to the Interior Board of

Indian Appeals. ' | | | |

76.  InJanuary 2010, the Board decided Burley's appeal. The Board recognized that the

AS-IA’s February 11, 2005 decision and the ensuing federal litigation had already finally determined

the followmg issues: (1) that the BIA did not reco gmze the Tribe as bemg organized; (2) that the BIA

<

did not reco gnize any tribal government that represents the Tribe; (3) that the Tribe’s membershlp was
-19-

CGCC-RJIN-019



: AS.-IA for resolution.

Case. 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 32 Filed 10/17/11 Page 20 of 42

not necessarily limited to the Burleys and Yakima Dixie; and (4) that the BIA had an obligation to.

ensure that a “greater tribal community” was allowed to participate in organizing the Tribe. The -

" Board recognized that, to the extent Burlcy's appeal attempted to relitigate those issues, it had no

jurisdiction over her claims. Accordingly, the Board dismissed all of Burley's claims (including those

- claims not discussed here), except for a single, narrow issue.

77. According to the Board, the Burley appeal raised a solitary issue that had not already
been decided by the AS-TA: the process for decidiﬁg "who BIA will recognize, individually and
collectively, as members of the 'greater tribal community' that BIA believes must be allowed to

participate in the general council meeting of the Tribe for organizational purposes.” The Board

erroneously characterized this as a "tribal enrollment dispute,” because it failed to recognize that the

lineal descendants of historical Tribal members are already Tribal members and therefore that the
BIA’s 2007 proposed assistance with Tribal organization would not confer membership on these

people. Because it lacks jutisdiction over “enrollment disputes,” the Board referred the issue to the

The AS;-IA’S A‘uguAst 31 Decisioﬁ

78 | The AS-LA. issued his initial decision in the Burléy a-I.Jpeal' on December 22, 2010.
Plaiﬁtiffs challenged the De;cembe'r 22 Decision before this Court, a.nd'the AS-IA withdrew the
ldec.:ision on April 1, 2011. The AS-IA stvated in his April 1 letter that he planned to issue a new
decision. |

79. On April 6, 2011, ina felate.d Califomia state court prc;ceeding,' attorneys for Ms.
E;url,ey stated in open court that they had been inforrngd'that the AS-IA planned to iséue‘a new
decision reafﬁrmigg the sﬁbstance of the December 22 Decision and making that decision invulnerable

to 1éggl challenge.
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" 80, After briefing by Ms. Burley and the Plaintiffs, the AS-IA issued his August 31
_ Decision on August 31,2011 A
81.  Inthe August 31 Decision, the AS—LA reached substantially the same conclusions as he |
had in hlS December 22 Decision, again purporting to decide issues long settled and not subject to
further appeal. Contrary to the Court of Appeals ruling, the AS-IA declared that the Tribe can
| organize itself Without complying with the IRA,; that the Tribe has already established a vahd '
government under the 1998 Resolution, Which was signed hy only two people; and that the Uhited
States must carry on .government-to-govermnent relations with Burle}r's anti-majoritarian couneil. In
addition, the AS-IA grossly exceeded his authonty over Tribal matters by purpomng to detenmne that
the membership of the Tribe is 11m1ted to five people, and by erroneously charactenzmg the other 242
members of the Tribe as "potential,” rather than actual, members.
Consequences of the Secretary’s Unlawful ﬁecision k
- 82. As a result of the AS-IA’s unlawful August 31 Decrsron, the Plaintiffs have suffered
and w111 continue to suffer great injury, including but not limited to the followmg
83. Plaintiffs have been and will be denied the benefits of Tribe membership.

a. .. The August 31 Decisiorr finds that "the citizenship of the [Tribe] consists solely
of Yakima Dixie, Silvie Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk, and Tristian Wallace. ! Thus, |
* individual Plaintiffs (e;rcept for M.r Dixre) are denied membership in the Tribe by the decision.
beniel of Ttibal membership is a violation of f.undarhental rights. |

b. The August 31 Decision gives the Burleys corrrplete control over Tribal
membership and governance, including the power to exclude Mr. Dixie from‘membership. The
Burleys have aheady purported to dlsenroll Mr. Dixie once, in 2005, although it purported to re-enroll

him in 2009 for litigation purposes.

! Reznor, Paulk and Wallace are Burley's daughters and granddaughter, respectively. -
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84. ) As a result of the August 31 Decision, Plaintiffs are denied their rightful place in the
l'arger Indian community and culture. | 4

8s5. As a result of the August 31 Decision, Plaintiffs are not and will not be eligible to '
receive federal health, education and other beneﬁts provided to members of recognized Indian Tribes. '

86. As a result of the August 31 Decisiou Plaintiffs have been and will be denied the -
opportumty to partlcnpate in the organization and governance of the Tnbe

; a. Because the August 31 Dec1s10n erroneously ﬁnds that individual Plamtlffs
(except for Mr. Dixie) are not members of the Tribe, it denies deny them any role in the orgamzatlon
of the Tnbe Indeed, the August 31 Decision spec1ﬁca11y finds that none of the Tribe's members
except for the Burleys and Mr Dixie have any c1tlzensh1p rights, mcludmg the right to part101pate in
the Tribe's govemment o

b. The August 31 Declsron finds that the Tnbe "is not required to 'organize’ in

accord with the procedures of the IRA" and that its general'cou.ncﬁ as deﬁned under the 1998
Resolution is :"vested witﬁ the full authority of the Tribe, and may conduct the fu.lllrange of
government—to- government relations with the United 'States.” Because the Decision disavows any- :
requlrement that the Trlbe form a government that is representatwe of its entire membersh1p, ne1ther
Plamtlffs nor any of the Tnbe s other members W111 ever have the opportunity to partlclpate in the
Tribe's self-government.

87. Bj denying Plaintiffs' membership in ttre Tribe ano recognizing the Burley government
under the 1998 Resolution, the August 31 Decision strips the Tribal Council of 1egitimacy and |
mterferes with the vital programs that the Council has estabhshed to benefit the Tribe and its members,
‘ strengthen Tribal culture and trad1t1ons, and restore Tribal ties wrth the larger Native Amencan

community.
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88. The August. 31 Decision, if upheld by the Court, could provtde a basis for allowing
Burley to divert funds held in trust for the Tribe by the State of California. Beginning in 1999, Burley .
represented to the California Gambling Control Commission (“Commission™) that she was the
authorized repnesentattve of the Tribe and entitled to collect funds paid by the state to tribes that do not
operate casinos or- gaming devices. Burley received millions of dollars from the Commission, which
were meant for the Trfbe, between 1999 and 2005 (the “State Funds™). -

a. None of the Plaintiffs received any' of the State Funds. ‘The Plaintiffs do not
know of any members of the Ttibe who received or benefited from e.ny of the State Funds except for
Burley and her imrnediate family. The Plaintiffs do not know of any pregrams fer the benefit of the |
Tribe or 1ts members that were created or supported with the Funds. |

"~ b. In 2005 the Comm1ss1on ceased dlsmbutlon of the State Funds to Burley on the
~ ground that the federal government d1d not recogmze her as the approprlate represen’catwe of the
Tnbe. Burley has filed litigation in Cahforma Superior Court, seelczng to compel the Comm1ssmn to
 resume distribution of the State Funds to her, including approxim‘atelyl$7. 5 million of the State Funds
that the Commmission has withheld since 2005. See California Valley Miwok Tribe v. California
Gamblzng Control C’ommzsszon No 37 2008-00075326 (Sup. Ct. San D1ego) Burley seeks to
introduce the August 31 Decision as evidence that she is entitled to receive the State Funds.
c " If Burley receives the State Funds Mr. Dixie and the members of the Tribal
Council will be demed the beneﬁt of the State Funds, because the State of Cahforma has no control
over the use of the State Funds once they are paid to a tribe. |
d. If Ms. Burley receives the State Funds, the T;ibe will be denied the Funds,

because Ms. Burley is not a legitimate representatwe of the Tribe. . |

89..  The August 31 Decision will allow Burley to dwert federal funds intended for the

‘Tribe. Beginning in 1999, and continuing through 2007, Burley received federal grant money
- 03-
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intended for the Tnbe, based on her representation that she was an authorized representative of the
Tribe. The grant money was provided through a “self- detennmatlon contract” pursuant to the Indian
" Self- Detcrmmanon and Education Assistance Act 25.U.8. C § 450 et seq. ("PL 63 8”) to assist the

' Tribe in organizing under the IRA. Burley received as much as $400,000 to $600,000 per year. undcr

th1s contract.

a. " Burley did not use the PL 638 funds to vorganize the Tribe consistent with the
IRA Instead, she -sought to disenfranchise Plaiﬂtiffs and other members of the Tribal cémmunity and
to secure the benefits of Tribe me1nBership oniy for herself and her immediate f;.mily. ‘ |
| b. The BIA pre§ious1y indicated its intent, based on the AS-IA's Deccmber 22
Décision, to enter into a new PL 638 'conﬁact with the Burleyé. If the August 31 Decision is allowed to
stand, the Tribe will be denied its rightful use of the PL 638 funds, begaﬁse those fundé will be paid to -
Burley and.her illegitimaté government instead. | | .
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Arbitrary and Capricious Agency Action in Viola‘tion qf .the APA)

' 90. . Plaintiffé re-allege the a;bc'ﬂ(/e paragraphs and incorporate fd_lose paragj:apils herein as if
" set forth in full | '

91.  The APA provides thgt a court'must hold.u.nlawful and set aside agency action that is
“arbitrary, capricious, an abusé of discretion, §r ofherwise not in gccordancé with .la\%/.” 5 U.S.C.v
§706(2)(A). -

92,  The AS-IA’s Augusf 31 Decision constitutes “final agenéy éction.”

93.  The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A)'be‘cause it ﬁnlawfully
fedpened and addressed issues not within fhe scope or jurisdiction of the Board appeal from which the

decision arose.
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94,  The August 31 Decision violates APA seétion 706(2)(A) because, without reasoned
decision making or foundation in the record, it rel{zcr’ses judicially approved, longstandiqg bcpartment
policy and prior Department Aetenninationé regarding the status of the Tribe, the Burley government,
the application of the IRA to the Tribe, and thé Departinént's obligation to ensure that if deals only
v;/ith legitimate rcﬁresentatives of a tribe's members. | |

- 95, - The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because the agency failed to
consider the Plaintiffs' legitimate reliance on Deferidants prior iﬁtexpretations of their governing
. statutes. _

96, - The Aﬁgust 31 Decisioﬁ violates APA se;:tion 706(2)(A) because it ié linsupportcd by "
substantial évidencg in thé record Before the agency. |

97. Thé August.?al Dgcisio‘n is arbiu'ﬁry and capriéidus, an abuse of djscrétion, or otherwise
not in aécordan,ce with law because BI;A. failed to'carry out its duty to ensure that the interests of all
Tribai members were protected‘durihg the process for organizing the Tribe and choosing its
: leadership, ‘and to ensure that the governing documénts for the Tribe reflect the will of a méj ority of
such members. | -

98. - The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it is preclude'd by the
doctrine of res judicata. - | )

99.  The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it is barred by the
doctrine of 3ud.i<‘:ia1 estoppel. (

100. The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it is barred by the -

’ »doctrine of litigation .estoppel. | . :
101. The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it is incoﬁsisteﬁt with

the TRA.

5.
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102. The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it concludes that.thc
Tribe only has five members, relies on the 1998 Resolution which is invalid b_ccause:.it was not
adop_téd by a majority of the Tribe's members, and relies on an enrollment of the Burleys into the Tribe
which was not approved by a majority of the Tribe;s members. |

103. The August 31 Decision violates APA section 706(2)(A) because it abdicateslthe

-Secretary'é fiduciary duty to the Tribe and its’membcrs. Under the IRA, the Secretary has a duty to

ensure that the Department reco gmzes only a legitimate tribal government that reflects the
partmpatmn of a majority of the Tribe's membersh1p In addition, under section 4507 of PL 638, the
Secretary hasa ﬁdu01ary duty to ensure that any tribal orgamzatlon that receives federal fundsto .

support tribal govemment, pro grams and services ao’cu_ally uses those funds to provide services and

" assistance to the tribe's members in a fair and uniform manner.

.104.  The August 31 Decision is arbitrary and capricious because the AS-IA failed to .

consider relevant evidence bearing on the issues before him and ignored evidence contradicting his

position, This evidence includes, but is not limited to:

a. = Personal genealo giesAaﬁd 'o__ther information submitted to the BIA in response to
the BIA’s 2007 public notice re garding Tribal organization, which demonstrate

that there are currently several hundred adult members of the Tribe;

b The Tribe’s current roster of adult members submitted with Plaintiffs’ May 3;
2011 briefing, which demonstrates that there are currently several hundred adult

" members of the Tribe;

c.  Information showing that the 1998 Resolution was adopted without the
participation or consent of a maj ority of the Tribe’s adult members at that time;

and
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d. - Bvidence of irregularities ahd improprieties in Burley’s attempt to displace Mr.

Dixie as Tribal chairperson and take control of the Tribe for herself.

105. The August 31 Decmon violates APA section 706(2)(A) because, on information and
behef the AS-IA and personnel involved in the decxslonal process for the August 31 Decision engaged
in improper ex parte contacts with representatlves of Ms. Burley prior to the issuance of the August 31
Decision, and prejudged the i issues involved in the August 31 Decision, in violation of the

' Depaiﬁnent‘s regulations at 43 CF.R. Part 4, including 43 C.F.R. section 4.27.
106. The August 31 Decision violates APA section '.706(2)(A)' because, on information and
belief, the AS-IA and personnel involved in the decisional process for the August 31 Decision engaged
: 1n improper ex parte contacts prior to the issuance of the August 31 Decision With 'BIA employees or
representatives ‘who representeﬁ the BIA in Ms. Burley's appeal before the Board, and prejudged the
issues involved in the August 31 Decisien, in viol_aﬁon of the Deparunent's regulations at'43 C.F.R:
‘Part 4, including 43 C.F.R. section 4.27.
107. As a direct and prox1mate result of the August 31 Dec151on Mr, D1x1e Velma
Whitebear, Antoma Lopez Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and Antone Azevedo have been and
- will continue to be denied the benefits of Tribe membership and w111-suffer irreparable injury and
financial loss: |
108, As a direct and proximate result of the August 31 Decision, Mr. Dixie, tne Tribal
Council, and Velma Whitebear Antonia Lopez, Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and Antone
Azevedo have been and will continue to be denied their rightful opportamty to part1e1pate in the
orgamzatlon and governance of the Tribe and will suffer irreparable injury and financial loss.
109. As a direct and proximate result of the August 31 Decision, the Tribe, the Tribal
Council and the 1nembers of the Tribe, inclueling Mr. Dixie, Velma Whitebear, Antonia Lopez,

Michael Mendibles, Evelyn Wilson and Antone Azevedo, have been and will continue to be denied the
- 27
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use of the PL 638 funds available through the BIA, and the State Funds provided by the Commission,
and will suffer irreparable injury and financial loss.

110. Asadirect and proxirrlate result of the August 31 Decision, the Tribe and its members
will be denied recognition to conduct traditional Tribal activities and official acts, and to intervene in
Jegal and regulatory proceedings to protect the Tribe's interests and'those of its members, and will

suffer irreparable irrjury and financial loss.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

- (Violation of Substantive Due Process)

111. Plaintiffs re-allege the above paragraphs and incorporate those paragraphs hérein as if

set forth in full

112. The Aug‘ust 31 Decision vrolates the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment to the
United States Constitution because it arbitrarily deprives Plaintiffs of their fundamental rights as

Tribal members, including the' rights to Tribal citizenship, political representation, and self-

government. Because the Aﬁgust 31 ‘Decision kncwingly and deliberately strips Plaintiffs of these

r1ghts wrthout regard for bedrock principles of democrauc self—government and maj onty rule, the AS-

IA's egregious conduct shoclcs the conscience and must be reversed

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

(Vlolatlon of Procedural Due Process)

113. | Plamtlffs re- allege the above paragraphs and incorporate those paragraphs herein as 1f
set forth in full | o

114. The August 31 Decision v1olates the Due Process Clause of the Flfth Amendment to the
United States Constitution because it erroneously deprives Plamtrffs of constltunonally protected
'licerty and property inter.ests without adequate procedural protections, including a pre-deprivation

hearing. These interests include, but are not limited to, the right to education, health and other benefits
8-
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to 4Which individual Plaintiffs are entitled as members of the Tribe, gnd the right to the State Funds anq :
. the PL 638 funds to which the Tribe is legally entitled. | |
115, | The August 31 Decision violates the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Andcndmenfc to the
United States Constitution because, on information and belief, the AS-IA and/or other Departmeﬁt
pérsonncl involved in the decisional pfocess for the August 31 Decision engaged in impro'p'er ex .parte
confé,cts with representatives of Ms. Bﬁrl_ey prior to the issuaﬁce of the August 31 Decision and
prcjudged the issues.involved in the Décision.
116. The August 31 Decision violates the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment to the
© United States Constitution because, on information and belief, the AS-IA and/or other Department
- i)ersonnei invélved in tﬁf_: :'decisional process for the August 31 Debision engaged in improper ex parte
contacts prior to‘th‘e iséuance of the‘ August 31 Decision with BIA em-ployecs or representatives who
represented the BIA in Ms. Burley's apéﬁaal before the.Board,Aand prejudged the issues jnvolved in the
Decision. | | | | |

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Violation of the Indian Civil Rights Act)
117. Plaintiffs re—allegt} the above paragraphs and incc;rporate those paragraphé hgfein asif
set forth in full. | | |

118. The August 31 Decision violates the Indian Civil Righ"ts Act, 25 USs.C. 130i.et seq.,
(“ICRA”) becausel? by récognizing the 1998 Resolutiop. and Burley governument, it deprives 4P1ainti‘ffs ‘
and othfsr Tribal 1nemb ers of ﬁmdamentgl‘political rights and protected liberty and property interests
without due procesé pf law. | | | | .

1 19.. The August 31 Decision violates the ICRA because, by recognizing the 1998

Resolution and Burley government, it denies individual Plaintiffs and other Tribal members equal
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protection by depriving them of fundamental rights that are granted to other Tribal members, without a

legitimate basis.

PRAYERF OR RELIEEK

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Court issue. an. order:

A Vacating and setting aside tﬁe August 31 Decision as arbitrary, capricious, unsupported-
by substantial evidence in the ;ecbrd, an abuse of discretion and otherwise not in a‘ccordaﬁce Wlth law; -
B. D‘eclaring' that the Secretary (a;:tin'g through his suborciinate; the AS-IA) violated his B
ﬂduéiary duty to the Tribe and its individual members by adopting the August 31 Decision and
allowing the Burleys to obtain federal funding intended to benefit the Tribe and its.mcmbers;
C.. Declaring that the AS-IA's August 31 Decision deniéd Plaintiffs substantive due
précess; B . - |
. D. 'Declz;.ring that the AS-IA’s August 31 Decision denied Plaintiffs procedural due
process; ‘ o | ‘ _‘ ‘
| E. Déclariﬁg that the AS—IA’.S.August“3 I'Decisioﬁ violated the ICRA by'rec.ognizing a
Tribal govérnhig document and governing Body that depr.i.ve Plaintiffs and other Tribal members of
equal protection ar;d'due process of law;’ |
F. Dir‘ecti;lg the.AS-IA and the BIA to establish gbvernment-"co—govemmer_lt_ relatioﬁs only
with a Tribal govemment that reﬂécts the .pa.lrticipation of the entire Tribal community, inbluding -
individual PlaintifFs and all other Current Members;
G. ‘Prcliminariiy and permanently enjoining the Secretaty, AS-IA énd BIA. from taking any
action to implexﬁent the August 31 Decision, including any award of federal funds to the Burleys |

under PL 638 or any other federal law or program;
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H.  Awarding the Plaintiffs damages, and attorneys fees and reasonable costs incurred in
connection with this action; and

L Granting such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.
Respectfully submitted,

/s/ M. Roy Goldberg.
M:ROY GOLDBERG

(D.C: Bar No. 416953)
CHRISTOPHER M. LOVELAND

(D.C. Bar No. 473969)
Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP
1300 I Street, N.-W., 11th Floor East

' _ Washington, DC 20005-3314
i ' Tel: (202) 772-5313
' Fax: (202) 218-0020

: - - rgoldberg@sheppardmullin.com

Dated: October 17, 2011 . ' cloveland@sheppardmullin.com

Of Counsel:

ROBERT J. URAM (admitted pro hac vice): -
Sheppard Mullin Richter & Hampton LLP
Four Embarcadero Center, 17th Floor-

San Francisco, California 94111-4109

. Tel:  415-434-9100

Fax: 415-434-3947
ruram@sheppardmullin.com
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. CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on October 17, 2011, I caused a true and accurate copy of the

foregoing First Amended Complaint to be served via first class mail, postage prepaid and via email on

the following persons:

Kenneth D.-Rooney

Trial Attorney .

United States Department of Justice
Environmental and Natural Resources Division
P.O. Box 663 .

“Washington, D.C. 20044

kennethrooney@usdoj.gov

‘Robert A. Rosette, Bsq.

565 West Chandler Boulevard
Suite 212

Chandler, Arizona 85225

rosette@rosettelaw.com

/s/ M. Roy Goldberg
~ M. Roy Goldberg
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United States Department of the Interior

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240

AUG 31 20
Ms. Silvia Burley :
10601 N. Escondido Place

Stockton, California 95212

Mr. Yakima Dixie

. 1231 E. Hazelton Avenue.

Stockton, Califomnia 95293
Dear Ms. Burley and Mr, Dixie:
Fatroduction and Decision

On December 22, 2010, T sent you a letter setting out my decision in response to-a question
referred 1o me by the Interior Board of Tndian Appeals (IBIA) in California Valley Miwok Tribe
v. Pacific Regional Direcror; Bureau of Indian Affairs, 51 IBIA 103 (January 28,2010} (IB1A .
decision). 1 determmed that there-was “no need for the BIA to continue its previous efforts 1o
organize the Tribe's government, because it is organized-as.a Gener: al Council, pursuant 1o the
[1998 General Council Resolution] it adopted at the suggestion of the BIA™ T concluded further

" that there was “ho need for the BIA to continue its previous efforis to ensure that the 'Iubc.

confers tribal citizenship upon other individiial Miwok Indians in the surrmmdmg aréa.’

1 issued my December decision wn:hout providing the parties a formal oppertunity te brief mie o1
the facts and issues.as they saw them. Asaresult of subsequent actions by both parties,
T deterinined 1o witlidraw thie December decision. and,.on April 8, 2011, 1 requested briefing

. from the parties. -Coursel for the parties provided detailed responses with numerous exhibits.

I appreciate the time and efl fmt that went into provldmg these responses. I have considered them
carcfully. :

Based on Lhe litigation records in the prior Federal courl dmons in both California and

.‘Washington, D.C., the proceedings before the Departmient’s iterior Board of Indian Appeals.”
and the mateiial bUanll(ed in.response to my April 8 letier, I now find the following:

(1) The Callfomm Valley. Miwok Tribe (CVMT).1 isa federally re«,oumzcd ribe. and ]‘Jdb
" been continuously recognized by the United States since at least 1916;

(2) At the presem date, the citizenship of the CVMT consists solely of Yakima Dixie,
Silvia Burley. Rashel Reznor. Anjelica Paulk. and Tristian Wallace;
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(3) The CVMT today operates under a General Council form of government, pursuant to
- Resolution #CG-98-01, which the-CVMT passed in 1998, facilitated by representatives
of the Bureau of Indian Aftairs (Bureau or BIA)(1998 General Councﬂ Resolution);

(4) Pursuant to the 1998 General Council Resolution, the CYMT’s General Council is
vested with the governmental authority of the Tribe, and may conduct the full range of
9 ovemment-to government relations with the Umted States;

{5) Although this current General Council form or government does not render CVMT ai
“organized” tribe under the Indian Reorganization Act (IRA) (see e.g., 25 U.S.C. 476(a) and
{d)), as a federally recognized tribe it is not required “to organize™ in accord with the
procedures of the IRA (25 U.S.C. § 476(h));

(6) Under the IRA, as aménded, it is impermissible for the Federal govermmert 10 treal
tribes not “organized™ under the IRA differently from those “organized™ under the IRA
(25 U.S.C. §§ 47-6(1")-(}1)); and :

(7) As discussed in rncne detall below, with respect to finding (6), on this particular legal
point, I specifically diverge with a key underlying rationale of past decisions by
Deparument of the Interior (Départment) officials dcalmg with CVMT matters apparently
beginning around 2004, and decide o pursue a different policy dir echon Under the
circumstances of this case, it is inappropriate to invoke the Secretary’s broad authority 1o
manage “all Indian affairs and [] all matters arising out 6f Indian relations,” 25 U.S.C.
§ 2, or any other broad-based authority, to justify interfering with the CVMT"s internal
governance, Such interference would run counter to the bedrock Federal Indian law
principles of tribal sovereignty and tribal self-government, according to which the tribe,
as a distinct political entity. may “manag[e] its own alfairs and govern[] itself;” Cherokee
- Nation v. Georgia; 30 US. 1, 16 (1832); and would condlict with this Adrmmstranon S
¢lear commitment to protect: and honor tribal spverei gntv

Ubwuusjy the December 2010 decision, and today's reaffirmation of thaL de¢ision. mark a 180-
degree change of course from-positjons defended by this Departrrient in administrative and
judicial proceedings over the past seven years. This change is driven by a straightforward
correction in the Department's understanding of the California Valley Miwok Tribe's citizenship
and a different policy perspective on the Department’s legal obligations in light of those facts.

As discussed below, the BIA clearly understood in'1998 that the acknowledged CVMT citizens
had the right to exercise the Tribe’s inherent sovereign power iri a manner they chose. 1tig
unfortunate that soon after the 1998 General Council Resolution was enacted, an intra-tribal
leadership dispute erupted, and both sides of the dispute found, at various points in time in the
intervening years, that it served their respective interests 1o raise the theory that the BJA had &
duty to protect the rights o approximately 250 "potential citizens" of thé Tribe. A focus on that
theory has shaped the BIA's and the Department's position on the citizenship question ever

] I recognize that 1heD C. Circuit Court of Appeals’ ”()08 opinjon upholding prmr Depariment efforts to organize
the CVM'T pursuant (o the IRA afforded broad deference to the Department’s prier decisions and interpretations of
the law.  Cal. Valley Mivok Tribe v. United States, 515 T.3d 1262, 1264-68 (D.C. Cir. 2008).

2
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since. By contrast, today's decision clears away the misconceptions that these individuals have
inchoate citizenship rights that the Secretary has a duty to protect. They do not. The Tribe is not
camprised of both citizens and potential citizens. Rather, the five acknowledged citizens are the
only citizens of the Tribe, and the General Council of the Tribe has the exclusive authority to
determine the citizenship criteria for the Tribe. Santa Clara Pueblo v. Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 57
(1978). Ibelieve this change in the Department’s position is the most suitable means of
resolving this decade-long dispute and is in accord with principles of administrative law. Nat'/
Cable & Telecomms. Ass'nv. Brand X Internet Servs., 545 U.S. 967 (2005).

Background

. This decision is necessitated by a long and complex tribal Jeadership dispute that resulted in

extensive administrative and judicial litigation. Much of the factual background is set out in the .
prior decisions, so it is not necessary to repeat or even summarize all of it here.

~ The history of'this Tribe, and the record of this case to date, demonstrates the following:

The CYMT is a federally recognized tribe, 74 Fed. Reg. 40,218, 40,219 (Aug. 11, 2009);
In 1916, the United States purchased. approximately 0. 92 acres in Calaveras County,
Cahform& for the benefit 6f 12 narned Indians Jiving on the Sheepranch Ramhena (now
. Sheep Ranch)(Rancheria) (51 IBIA at 106); '
s The Indian Agent, who in 1915 recommended the purchase of the 0.92 acres, des¢ribed
the group of 12 named individuals as “the rerimant of once quite a large band of Indians
in former years living in and near the old dec‘,avm,t_= mining town known and designated °
on-the map as ‘Sheepranch,”™ Ji;

e The record shows only one adult Indfan lived on the Rauchena in 1933 a Jeﬁ’ Davis, wbn
voted “in favar of the IRA™ Jd,; ‘

* In 1966, the record shows only one-adult Indlan, Mabel Hodge: Dixie, Yakima Dnue 5
‘mother, lived o the Raricheria, when the BIA-craffed -z plan for (hbtnbuuon of tribal -
assets pursuant to the California Rancheria Act of 1958, Puli. L. No. 85-671, 72 Stat, 6]9

- as-amended by Act of Aug, 11, 1964, Pub. L. No. 88419, 78 Stat. 390;

.« Mabel Hodge Dixie was to be the sole dlstnbu‘ret oftribal assets under the 1966 :
Rancheria distribution plan;

«  While the Bureau initiated the process 1o terminate the Tribe, it never declared the Tribe
terminated and has never ireated-the Tribe.as if it-had been terminated; - :

o In 1994, Yakima Dixie wrote the BIA asking for assistance with home repairs and
describing himsel[ as “the only descendant-and recognized . ... member of the Tribe.”

(51 IBIA at 107); _ o :
"o Atsome point during the 1990s, Silvia Burley. “contacted BIA for imformation related io
~ her Indian heritage, which BIA provided. and by 1998—it BIA’s suggestion—Burley
had contacted Yakima]]” Dixie (as the IBIA has.noted, it appears that Burley may trace
her ancestry to a ‘Jefl Davis'. who was listed on the 191_3 census. )'5.1 IBIA at. 107,
including feotnote 7: '
» On August 5. 1998, Mr. Dixie * swned a stdtemcnt accepting Burlev as an enrolled
member of the Tribe. and also enrolling Burley s two daughters and her granddau ghter,”™ -
Id.; - ' '

o 4
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» The Tribe was not organized pursuant to the IRA prior to 1998 and did not have organic
documents setting out its form of government or criteria for tribal citizenship;

o In September of 1998, BIA staff met with Mr. Dixie and Ms. Burley “10 discuss
organizing the Tribe,” and on September 24,.1998 sent follow-up correspondence
recommending that, “given the small size of the Tribe, we recommend that the Tribe
operate as a General Council,” which could elector appomt a chairperson and conduct
business. Jd. at 108;

s On November 5, 1998, Mr. Dixie and Ms. Burley signed a resolution establishing a
Gengral Councﬂ which consisted of all adult citizens of the Tribe, 1o serve as the
governing body of the Tribe. Jd. at 109;

¢ Less than five months later, leadership disputes arose between Mr Dixie and Ms.
Burley—and (hose conflicts have continued to the preserit day:* ‘

» Initially the BIA recognized Mr. Dixie as Chairman, but later recognized Ms. Burley as
Chairperson based primarily upon the April 1999 General Council action appointing

- Mis. Burley as Chairperson - an action concurred in by Mr. Dixie. /d:;

e Mr. Dixie later challenged Ms. Burley's 1999 appointment; -

s In2002, Ms, Burley filed suitin the name of the Tribe alleging that the Department had
breached its trust responmblhty to the Tribe by distributing the assets of the Rancheria 16
a single individual, Mabel Dixi€, when the Tribe had a potential citizenship of “nearly

© 250 people[.]” See Complaint for Injunctive and Declaratory Relief at 1, Cal. Valley
Miwok Tribe v. United Srates, No. 02-0912 (E.D. Cal. Apr. 25, 2002);

e InMarch, 2004, the BIA Superintendent rejected a proposed constitution from Ms.
Burley because she had not involved the “whole tribal community” in the governmental
organization process;,

¢ On February 11, 2005; the Acnng Assistant Secrelary -~ lndxan Affaits issued a decision

' on Mr. Dixie’s 1999 appeal, ruling that the.appeal of the Bureau’s 1999 decision w
© recognize Ms. Burley as Chairperson was moot and that. the BIA wou]d Tecognizé Ms..
Burley only as & person of authority within the Triber -

» Ms. Burley sued in D.C. District Coutt challeriging the February 7003 decision;

s After the Distriet Court dismissed her challenge, Cal. Valléy Miwok Tribe v. Uniled
Stares, 424 F.Supp. 2d 197 (DD.C. 2006), the D, C. Circuit Court of Appeals afﬁrmed
Cal. Va]/e Mnwok Tribe v. United States, 515 F.3d 1262 (D.C. Cir. 2008);

s InJanuary 2010, the IBIA rejected Ms. Burley's appeal objecting to, .among other
matters, the Superintendents decision 1o continue to assist the Tribe in organizing its
government according to the IRA because it viewéd the marter as “effectively and
functionally a tribal enrollment dispute,” and then referred the matter to me on

" jurisdictional grounds. '

In response to the Board®s referral. 1 issued my December 22, 2010 decision letter. T intended.
that decision to resolve the citizenship question referred to me by the IB1A by finding that the
curremt Tribe's citizenship consisted of the five acknowledged citizens noted above and
recognizing the Tribe's General Council as a tribal government with which the United States may

¥ I note thal the Depariment repeatedly has offered to assist jn médiating this disputé-—to no avail. The amountof .
time and resources focused on these disputes reflects poorly on all the parties. and they must be mindful fhat
continuing this improdent dispute risks potential adverse consequences wel] beyond the Tribe and iis citizens.

4

CGCC - RJN - 037



Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 32 - Filed 10/17/11 Page 38 of 42

conduct government-to-government relations. Almost immediately, Mr. Dixie filed suit in the
D.C. District Court challenging that decision. Recognizing the complex and fundamental nature
of the underlying issues, and because I desired the benefit of submissions from the interested
parties. [ set aside that decision and requested formal briefing. ‘

The submissions by ihe parties in response 10 my request were thorough. [ have: carefully
reviewed the submissions and find they were most helpful in enhancing my understanding of the
parties’ positions.

Analysis

It is clear to me that the heart of this matier is a misapprehension about the pature and extent pf.
the Secretary’s role. if any, in determining tribal citizenship of a-very small, uniquely situated
tribe. Related to this issue is the Tribe’s current reluctance ta “organize” itself under the IRA,
choosing instead to avail itself of the provisions in 25 U.S.C. § 476(h), first enacted in 2004,
which recognizes the inherent sovereign powers of tribeés “to adopt goveriiing documents under
procedurcs other than those specified , .. [in the IRA.]”

Appli cability of General Legal Authorities of the Secretary of the Interior-in Indian Affairs

The D.C. Circuit viewed § 476(1) as ambiguous, and then granted Chewror deference to the ‘
then-Seeretary™s interpretation of that pravision. 513 F.3d at 1266-68. The D.C Circuit put great
welght on the Secretary’s broad authority over Indian affairs under 25 U.S.C. .§ 2, writing that
“{wle have previously held that this extensive grant of authority gives the Secretary broad power
to carry out the federal government’s unique responmbmues with respéct to Indians.” Id. at
1267. eitations omitred. In addition to § 2, 25 U.S.C.§§ 9, and 13, and 43 US.C. § 1457, aré
often cired as the main statutory bases for the Dépaitment’s general authority in Indjan affairs.

Cal. Valley Miwok Tribe v. United Stares, 424 F Supp, 2d 197,201 (D.D.C. 2006); see also
COHEN’S HANDBOOK. OF FEDERAL INDIAN LAW § 5.03[2] at 405 (2005 ed.) [hereinafier
COUEN]. The D.C. Circuitalso cited two cases involving separdtc banids of the Seminole .

~ Nation for the general propositions that the United States has-an “obligation™ “fo promote a
itibe’s political integrity™ as well as “the responsibility to ensure that [a tribe’s] representatives.
with whom [it] must conduct government-to-government relations, are valid representatives of
the [iribe} as @ whole.” 513 T.3d at 1267(emphasis ddded by rhe Court), citing, Seminole Nafion
v. Unired States, 313 U 8. 286, 296 (1942), and-Seminale Nation of Oklahoma v. Narlon 223
F.Supp. 2d 122, 140 (D.D.C. 2002). ' :

In my view, prior Dep_arim‘e‘nt officials misapprehended their responsibility when they: (1)took-
their focus off the fact that the CVMT was comprised a five individuals, and (2) mistakenly
viewed the Federal government as having particular duties.relating to mdzwdua.l: who were.not
citizens of the uibe.. I decline 10 invoke the broad legal authorities cited above to further intrude
into internal tribal citizenship and governarnice issues in the instant case, In making this decision,
1 also am mindfu] of the Supreme Court's recent guidance concerning: (1) the importance of
idenuifying “specific rights ¢reating or duty-imposing statutory or regulatory prescriptions™
before concluding the United States is obligated Lo act in a particular manner in Indian affairs,

L
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-and (2) the central role F ederal policy plays in administering Indian affairs. U/nited States v.

Jicarilla Apache Nation, 131 S. Ct. 2313, 2323-24, 2326-27 (June 13, 2011).
Application of Specific Legal Authorities

In my view, prior Deparh’nenl orhclah (from 2003 to the present) fundamentally misunderstood
the role of the Federal government in addressing the CVMT citizenship and governance issues:
(1) they misunderstood and ignored the Jegal authority of CVMT to govern itself through its -
General Council structure without being compelled to “organize™ under the IRA; and (2) they
confused the Federal government's obligations to passzble tribal citizens with those owed 10
actual tribal citizens.

The February 11, 2003, decision of Acting Assistant Secretary — Indian Affairs Michael D. Qlsen
stated that, unti] the Tribe organized itself, the Department could not recognize anyoné as the
Tribe’s Chairperson, and that the “first step in organizing the Tribe is idemifying the putative
tribal members.” (2003 Decision at 1-2, discussed in 51 IBIA at 112). The D.C. Circuit, after
citing the Secretary’s broad authority under 25 U.8.C. § 2, endorsed this approach as a
reasonable interpretation of 25 U.S.C. § 476(h) because “[tJhe exercise of this authority is
especially vital when, as Is the case here, the governmeni is determining whether a tribe is
organized, and the receipt of significarit federal benefits turns on the decision.”™ 515 F.3d at
1267. As Ihave stated above, I reject as contrary to § 476(H) the notions that = tribe can be
compelled 10 “organize™ underthe IRA and that a tribe not so organized can have *significant .
federal benefits™ withheld from it. Either would bea clear viclation of 25 U.S.C, § 476(1).

The CVM’I"cun'enﬂyco.nsis_ts of the five citizens identified above. Under the current facts, the
Departinent.does not have a legitimare role in attempting to force the Tribe to expand its
¢itizenship.” Department officials previously referyed to “ﬂue'impoftance of participation of a

- greater {ribal community in determining citizenship criteiia,” (Superintendent™s 2004 Decision at

3. discussed in 51 IBIA at 111-112). The D.C, Cireuit, referring to the Tribe’s governance
structure that arguably would maintain a limited citizenship, stated “[{]his antimajoritarian
gambit deserves no stamp of approval from the Secretary.” 515 F.3d at 1267. However, | know
of no specifie staruory or regulatory author iry that warrants such intrusion into a federally
recognized tribe’s.internal affairs. (As to the more general sources of authority cited in suppor

~ of Federal oversight of tribal matters, I have e\plamed my views on the proper scope of thase

authorities above). “Courts have consistently recognized that one of an Indian tribe’s most basic
powers is the authority to determine questions of its own membership.” Sante Clara Pueblo v.
Matriinez, 436 U.S, 49, 57,72 1n.32 (1978); Unired Slalgs V. Wheeler, 435 U.S., 313,322 n.18
(1978); COHEN § 3.03[3] at 176, citutions omitted. *[I1]{ the issue for which the determination

_is important involves intemnal affairs of 1he Indian nation, it is more consistent with principles of

tribal sovereignty to defer to that nation’s definition.” Jd. at 180. As discussed in the previous
paragraph. 1 also believe that, based on an incorrect interpretation of § 476(h), the previous
Administration’s views on the IRA’s application to this case were erroneous and led o an
improper focus on expanding the size of the Tribe and altering the form of its government.

¥ While | believe that it is equuabh appropriate for the CVMT General Couneil to reach aut 10 potem:al ceitizens of
the Tribe, 1 do not believe it is _proper, as a matter of law, for the Federal government 1o atiempr 10 impose such g -
requiremeént on a federall\ recognized tribe,

h
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Mr: Dixie invokes the 4/an-Wilson IBIA cases.to support the theory that the Secretary has a duty
to ensure that the potential cmzens are involved in the organization of an unorganized, but
federally recognized tribe.* 30 IBIA 241, Bu, in fact, Alan-Wilson works directly against Mr.
Dixie's position, and this distinction provides additional support for my decision. Unlike CVMT,
the Cloverdale Rancheria was a federally recognized tribe terminated under the California
Rancheria Act. Tt was later restored pursuant to the Tillie Hardwick litigation and settlement,
which required the Rancheria to organize its tribal government under the TRA.

30 IBIA 241, 248,

My review of the history of the CVMT compels the conclusion set out in the December decision
and reaffirmed here: the CVMT has been continuously recognized, and its political relationship
with the Federal government has not been terminated. The five acknowledged citizens are the
only current citizens of the Ttibe, and the Tribe's Genetal Council is autharized to exercise the
Tribe’s governmental authority. In this case, again, the factual record is clear: there are only five
citizens of CVMT. The Federal government is under no duty or obligation to “poiential citizens™
of the CYMT. Those potential cmzens, 11" they so desire, should take up the1r cause with the
CVMT Gem,ral Council directly. -

(Given both parties’ acknowledoment of the existence of other mdmdualb who could potentially
become tibal citizens, the Department s prior positions are understandable. The Department
erideavored 16 engage both parties in & resolution of the wibal citizenship issues, including offers
of assistance from the Department’s Office of Collaborative Action and Dispute Reselution
(CADR) —10 n¢ avajl. By the time this matter was referred to me by the TBTA in January 2010,
serious doubls existed about the likelihood of the parties ever being able 10-work together to
resolve the issues involving the citizehship and governance of the I ribe.

.Absent an express.commitment from ih,e parties to formally defineribal citizenship eriteria, any
Turther effort by the Department to do so would result in an"unwarranted intrusion into the
internal affairs of the Tribe. Moreover; given the unfortunate histery of this case, most Iikely
“such-efforts would not succeed in accomplishing this objective.. While there may be rare
circumstances in which such an intrusian would be warranted in order for the Secretary to -

~ discharge specific responsibilities, no such specific law or circumstances exist here. .

Accordingly. unless asked by the CVMT General Council, the Départiment-will make no further
efforts to assist the Tribe Lo organize and define its citizenship. | acceptthe Resolution #GC-98-
(1 as the interim governing document of the Tribe, and as ihe basis for resuming govermnment-to- '
government relcmons beLwe;n the Uruled Stales and the Tribe. :

While ’I appreciate that the General Council Resolution may prove lacking as to certain gspects
of tribal governance, I-also recognize that this tribe is very small and uniquely situated. Many
tribes have been able to govern effectively with limited or no written gov erning documenh

' Mr. Dixie also invokes the case of Seminole Nation of Oklahomu v. Norton. 223 F.Supp.2d 122 (D.0.C, 2002) in
support of his position. Semincle Narion involved a dispute where a particular faction of the Tribe asseried rights 1o
wibal citizenship under an 1866 treaty. /d, a1 138, There is no overriding rreaw or conanssuma] enagtment
gaverning tribal ¢itizenship af issue in (his dispute,
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Conclusion .
.Based upon the foregping analyéis, I re-affirm the following;

. CVM’I‘ is a federally recognized tribe whose entire cmzens]up, as of this date, consists of
" the five acknowledged citizens;
« The 1998 Resolution established a General COUDGI] form of oovemment comprised of al]
-the adult citizens of the Tribe, with whom the Department may conduct government-to-
gcovernment relations; ‘
o The Department shall respect the valldly enacted resolutions of the General Councﬂ and
»  Only upon a request from the General Council will the Department assist the Tribein =~
refining or expandmg its citizenship eriteria, or developing and adoptmg other govemning
documents,

In my December 2010 decision letter [ rescinded several earlier decisions. Tam persuaded that
such attempts to rewrite history are fraught with the risk of unintended consequences. Past
actions, undertaken in good faith and in reliance on the authority of pnor Agency decisions,
should not be called into question by today’s deétermination that these prior Agency decisions
were erroneous. Thus, today™s deubmn shall apply pmspectwely

This dcusmn is final for the D&pamnent and: effectwe munedlalelvh but implementation shall be
';tayc.d pending resolution of the litigation in'tlie District Court for the District of Columbia,
California Valley Miwok Tribe v. Sa]a:a/ C.A. No 1 II-cv-OOlﬁO—RW'R (ﬁled 03716/11).

Finally, 1 strongly cncourage the partles to work within the Tribe’s existing government \lruomre
10 resolve this ]on%tandma dlsputc and bring this. contentious period in the ‘I‘nbe s hlstory ioa
close.

_Sincerely,

Larr chho H'\WT\ '
Assistant Secretary . Indian-Affairs-

ce: Robert A. Rosette, qu
565 West Chandle; Boulevard, Sunc 212
Chandler, Arizona 85223

Roy Goldberg, Esq.

Sheppard Mullin Richier & [1ampton LLP
1300 I Street, N.W-, 11 Floor East
Washington. D.C. 70003-33
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Case 1:11-cv-00160-RWR Document 32 File_d 10/17/11

Elizabeth Walker, Esq.
Walker Law LLC
429 North St. Asaph Street
Alexandria, Virginia 22314

Kenneth D. Rooney
Trial Attomey
Uniled States Department of Justice-
Environment and Natural Resources Dlwsmn
P.O.Box 663 .

~ Washington, D.C. 20044-0663

Mike Black,. Dlrector ‘Bureau of Indian Aft”an's
MS-4513-MIB

1849 C Street, N.W.,

Washington, D.C. 20240

Amy Dutschke, Direcior

Pacific Regional Office, Bureau of Indjan A.ffalrs
2800 Cottage Way, Room W-820;

Sacramente, California. 95 825

Troy Burdick, Superintendent’
Ceniral California Agency, Bureaw of Indian: Aﬂeurs
650 Capitol Mall, Suite 8-500
Sacramenta, Cali forma 95814

!\a'ren Koch, Aﬂomcy—/&dvxsor

Office of the Solicitor, Pacific Southwest Regmn
2800 Cottage Way, E-1712

Sacramento, California 95825.
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DECLARATION OF SERVICE

Case Name: California Valley leok Tribe v. Superior Court
Case No.: DO061811

I declare;

I am employed in the Office of the Attorney General, which is the office of
a member of the California State Bar, at which member’s direction this
service is made. I am 18 years of age or older and not a party to this
matter; my business address is 1300 I Street, Suite 125, P.O. Box 944255,
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550. )

On June 15, 2012, I served the attached MOTION THAT THE COURT
TAKE JUDICIAL NOTICE, SUPPORTING DECLARATION, AND
SUPPORTING MEMORANDUM by placing a true copy thereof enclosed
in a sealed envelope and causing such envelope to be personally delivered
by Golden State Overnight courier service to the office of the addressee
listed below: ‘

Court of Appeal - Original + 1 copy
Fourth Appellate District . ‘
750 B Street, Suite 300

San Diego, CA 92101

Robert A. Rosette 1 copy
Rosette, LLP
193 Blue Ravine Road, Suite 255
Folsom, CA 95630
' Attorney for Plaintiff

Manuel Corrales, Jr. 1 copy
17140 Bernardo Center Drive, Suite 370
San Diego, CA 92128 ‘

Attorney for Plaintiff

Terry Singleton o 1 copy
Singleton & Associates
1950 Fifth Avenue, Suite 200
San Diego, CA 92101
Attorney for Plaintiff



Thomas W. Wolfrum 1 copy

1333 North California Blvd., Suite 150

Walnut Creek, CA 94596 N .
Attorney for Real Party in Interes

Matthew McConnell 1 copy
Sheppard, Mullin, Richter & Hampton
12275 El Camino Real, Suite 200
San Diego, CA 92130
Attorney for Real Party in Interest

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California
the foregoing is true and correct and that this declaration was executed on
June 15, 2012, at Sacramento, California. ‘

Linda Thorpe M ()ZW

Declarant /- Signatufe



